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NEW BUSINESS WON

Bids won by BESydney in 2012/13: 73

Estimated economic impact of events won by 
BESydney in 2012/13: $113.1 million

Number of delegate days resulting from 
events won by BESydney in 2012/13: 131,127

STRATEGIC PARTNERS AND MEMBERS

2012/13 strategic partner and member 
investment with BESydney: $1.5 million

Strategic partners that continued to support 
BESydney at 30 June 2013: 93%

New strategic partners or members welcomed 
by BESydney: 24

Events held in 2012/13 previously secured by 
BESydney: 86

Estimated economic impact delivered to 
NSW from events held in 2012/13 that were 
previously secured by BESydney: $175.5 
million

Number of delegate days spent in NSW at 
events held in 2012/13 that were previously 
secured by BESydney: 210,774

EVENTS HELD ACCESSNSW

Business confirmed through AccessNSW in 
2012/13: $4.4 million 

AccessNSW business opportunities confirmed 
in 2012/13: 89

AccessNSW business held during 2012/13: 111

Value of AccessNSW business held during 
2012/13: $5.7 million

THE NUMBERS
AT A GLANCE

We understand that 
Government doesn’t have 
all the answers. Closer 
partnership between industry 
and Government is the key to 
our future economic prosperity. 
This is how we will take Sydney 
and New South Wales (NSW) 
to the next level of the global 
economy. 

In December 2012, the NSW 
Government released the NSW 
Economic Development Framework, 
which sets out actions needed to create 
a globally competitive, innovative and 
productive economy in NSW over the 
next decade. This framework highlights 
the need to raise the global profile of 
Sydney and NSW, make it easier to do 
business in the State, collaborate to 
drive innovation and competitiveness, 
invest in critical infrastructure, and 
demonstrate leadership. 

The Premier and I appreciate the 
importance of business events to both 
our visitor and knowledge economies. 

Business events are an important driver 
for the strong NSW visitor economy. In 
2012/13, the State welcomed almost 
28 million overnight visitors, which was 
worth $20.3 billion to the economy. 
It is clear that to cement NSW as 
the economic engine of the national 
economy we cannot ignore this sector. 

When approached as part of an aligned 
economic development strategy, 
business events can deliver impact 
far beyond the visitor economy. This is 
why business events now have a vital 
place in discussions about industry and 
investment, education and innovation, 
productivity and people.

Together, the NSW Government and 
Business Events Sydney (BESydney) 
have been working on building 
closer ties between the company’s 
Ambassador Program and the 
Government’s focus on priority industry 
sectors. The Global Talent Hub project, 
which seeks to better understand what 
attracts and keeps leading talent in 
the world’s leading cities, is also a 
collaborative project. 

Maintaining Sydney’s position as 
Australia’s global city is also a priority. 
This is why the NSW Government is 
investing significant resources into the 
essential redevelopment of the Darling 
Harbour precinct. From late 2016, the 
precinct will be home to Australia’s 
largest convention and exhibition 
space. It will also be an innovation hub 
in the heart of Sydney, connecting our 
educational, creative and multicultural 
precincts. 

BESydney will play a vital role in 
securing global events for these new 
facilities – events that will attract the 
world’s thinkers to NSW to connect, 
learn, and innovate. The NSW 
Government will continue to work 
alongside BESydney to maximise the 
opportunities that come from these 
events. The NSW Government is not 
only the bureau’s major investor – it is 
also one of its biggest champions. 
I encourage you to support business 
events in our State: bid, participate and 
collaborate. We all have a role to play.

Andrew Stoner
Deputy Premier of NSW

THE HON. ANDREW STONER MP
Deputy Premier of New South Wales

DEPUTY PREMIER'S
MESSAGE
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The Australian Government’s 
whitepaper, Australia in the 
Asian Century highlights that 
as the global centre of gravity 
shifts to our region, the tyranny 
of distance is being replaced by 
the prospects of proximity.

Business Events Sydney (BESydney) has 
had its strategic eye on Asian markets 
for many years, and in the 2012/2013 
financial year, for the first time, 
meetings and events from this region 
accounted for more than 50 per cent 
of the economic impact the company 
secured for New South Wales (NSW). In 
fact, in the last three years, 85 events 
from Asia have been held in NSW, 
contributing an estimated $186 million 
to the economy.  

And, while BESydney is certainly 
focused on growing business secured 
from Asia, the company is not forgetting 
the traditional association markets of 
Europe and North America. 

In financial year 2012/13, 86 events 
that BESydney secured took place in 
Sydney and NSW. Given the broader 
global financial trends – America 
is recovering, parts of Europe are 
still struggling, the Australian dollar 
has remained high – achieving our 
economic impact of $175.5 million is a 
great result. 

The company also secured 73 events 
that will take place in Sydney. These 
events are expected to attract over 
33,000 delegates and delivery and 

an economic impact to NSW of 
approximately $113.1 million. 

Bearing in mind that these events were 
secured alongside the announcement 
that Sydney will not have a convention 
centre through 2014–2016, and that 
for the better part of the year as the 
development tender process was 
finalised there were no images or plans 
available for the new centre, to me this 
demonstrates the enormous trust that 
our clients have in Sydney’s ability to 
deliver. 

Confidence in both our city and 
BESydney is high. Flowing on from 
the announcement about the Darling 
Harbour redevelopment, at the request 
of the NSW Government, the BESydney 
team took on the interim responsibility 
of managing the expressions of 
interest for both the new International 
Convention Centre Sydney (ICC Sydney) 
and the temporary exhibition facilities 
at Glebe Island. BESydney has also 
assisted in communication programs 
about the exhibition facilities. This 
caretaker role will transfer to the new 
operators as systems are in place. 

This is a great example of how our 
industry collaborates, and we are 
looking forward to a strong and 
successful relationship with the 
successful Darling Harbour Live 
consortium that will design, build 
and operate Sydney’s new convention 
centre, including Lend Lease, Capella 
Capital, HOSTPLUS, AEG Ogden and 
Spotless. 

I know that the relationship between 
AEG Ogden and the BESydney team 
is already strong, and the board 
recognises that this relationship will be 
essential for us to continue to secure 
business for the new ICC Sydney. 

As a board, we are focused on 
accountability and best practice. We 
have a number of long serving and 
committed directors. We also have new 
faces. Regardless of tenure, what we all 
bring is passion. 

This is a passionate industry. This is 
a competitive industry. To strive for 
world’s best, we need tenacity and also 
the drive to collaborate. We need to ask 
questions and seek honest answers. 
We also need to challenge the status 
quo. And I think that this is something 
BESydney does well. 

I congratulate Lyn and her team on 
achieving solid results in challenging 
times, and admire their tenacity and 
ability to focus on the here and now, 
and a future that is definitely bright. 

Lastly, I thank our partners for their 
ongoing support, in particular the NSW 
Government, Destination NSW, Sydney 
Harbour Foreshore Authority, the City 
of Sydney, and our other partners and 
members for taking this journey with 
us.

Col Hughes
Chairman
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
OFFICER’S REPORT

CHAIRMAN'S 
REVIEW

LYN LEWIS-SMITH
Chief Executive Officer

It was Albert Einstein who once 
said, “If you always do what you 
always did, you will always get 
what you always got”. I’ve used 
this quote a few times this year 
as it supports our thinking and 
our passion for innovation, our 
way of looking at problems as 
challenges and our desire for 
Sydney to be the world’s best 
business events destination.

Change is exciting. Change is 
reinvigorating. Change is the life blood 
of business in today’s competitive 
global environment. In the 2012/13 
financial year, we evolved our 
business practices, strengthened our 
relationships and asked those who 
do business with us to challenge the 
status quo. We welcomed new team 
members, new partnerships and new 
plans for a world-leading convention 
centre. It’s certainly been a year of 
growth for the company and our city. 

We are, at our foundation, a bidding 
organisation. And we are focused on 
securing business for Sydney and 
NSW and continually growing this 
pipeline. Our business is strong. As 
my Chairman mentioned, we have 
delivered significant economic value to 
the State.

But, how we maximise not only 
economic, but also social and 
cultural benefits from broadening 
and deepening our people-to-people 
links across the region, and indeed the 
world, will be key to future growth. 

The new International Convention 
Centre Sydney (ICC Sydney), located 
in the heart of what’s being called 
Sydney’s creative precinct – home to the 
University of Technology, Sydney, the 
ABC, Australia’s Powerhouse Museum, 
and more – will play a key role in 
connecting community, commerce 
and culture.  This year, we learned 
about the design and the vision for the 
precinct. We also secured business for 
the new centre. 

In fact, I’m particularly proud to share 
with you that as at 30 September, more 
than three years out from opening, we 
have secured five international events 
for ICC Sydney worth over $30 million. 
This is proof of the global confidence in 
Sydney’s ability to deliver and the trust 
that our clients place in Australia’s 
global city. 

In addition to bidding, competing 
with passion and integrity, our year 
has been punctuated with numerous 
international engagements – famils, 
trade shows, sales missions and bid 
presentations – that all help to nurture 
the essential element of business 
events: it’s about relationships. 

Together is a word we use often. 
We are collaborative and we believe 
in the power of networks and the 
power of partners. The support of our 
governments – in particular the NSW 
Government and City of Sydney, major 
and strategic partners and members, 
our incredibly talented ambassadors 
and future leaders, BESydney’s board 
of directors and of course our clients 
is essential to our success. To Sydney’s 
success. Thank you for your vision and 
confidence in me and my team.

Each event that we secure is a 
journey. Each event will bring global 
leaders to Sydney and NSW to meet 
with our people, to collaborate with 
our researchers, to trade with our 
businesses and more. Each event will 
create legacies that will be broad and 
far reaching. Who knows what could be 
created, cured, solved or built! 

This is what is exciting about our 
industry and why I want Sydney to 
be the world’s number one events 
destination. We will continue to 
challenge ourselves to rethink and 
review, with a focus on the legacies that 
will remain.

Lyn Lewis-Smith
Chief Executive Officer
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Board of directors

MR COLIN HUGHES
Independent Chair

Colin Hughes was appointed Chair of 
the BESydney board in 2007. With a 
background in the aviation industry, 
Colin is Past Chairman of the National 
Tourism Alliance, Director of the Travel 
Compensation Fund, Director of Best 
Western Hotels Australia, and Governor 
of the American Chamber of Commerce 
in Australia. In addition to these roles, 
Colin is a member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors, and 
an advisory board member of Tourism 
Northern Territory.

THE HONOURABLE ROBERT HILL AC
Independent Director

Robert Hill is well known for his past 
positions as Australian Ambassador 
and Permanent Representative to the 
United Nations in New York (2006–
2009), and Australia’s Minister for 
Defence (2002–2006) and Minister for 
the Environment (1996–2002). 

Robert is currently Chancellor of 
University of Adelaide, Adjunct 
Professor in Sustainability, United 
States Studies Centre, University 
of Sydney, and Chair Cooperative 
Research Centre for Low Carbon Living. 
He is also a member of the Asia Pacific 
Board of The Nature Conservancy 
(Hong Kong), a member of the advisory 
board for the Global Change Institute 
at the University of Queensland, 
and a member of the Global Oceans 
Commission.

PROFESSOR MARY O’KANE
Independent Director

Professor Mary O’Kane is the New 
South Wales Chief Scientist and 
Engineer and Executive Chairman of 
Mary O’Kane and Associates Pty Ltd – a 
Sydney-based company that advises 
governments, universities and the 
private sector on innovation, research, 
education and development. 

She is also Chair of the Cooperative 
Research Centre for Spatial Information 
Board and Chair of the Development 
Gateway and Development Gateway 
International. Additionally, Mary is a 
director of KUTh Energy Limited, NICTA 
Limited, Capital Markets Cooperative 
Research Centre Ltd and PSMA Ltd.

MS GABRIELLE TRAINOR LLB. FAICD
Independent Director 
Chair of the Finance, Risk and Audit 
Committee (FRAC)

Gabrielle Trainor is a former journalist, 
lawyer and public sector executive who 
has 20 years’ experience as a chair 
and non-executive director for a range 
of public, private and not-for-profit 
entities. The positions she has held 
cut across government, business and 
organisations in the finance, urban 
development, hospitality, sports and 
arts sectors.

She was a founding partner of one 
of Australia’s most successful and 
well-regarded public relations and 
government affairs consultancies, John 
Connolly & Partners. During her 20 
years at the firm, Gabrielle consulted 
on the management of difficult 
strategic issues to chairpersons and 
the executive management of top 20 
ASX-listed companies.

She is currently a member of the 
advisory board of Leighton Contractors 
and a director of the Barangaroo 
Delivery Authority, the GWS Giants 
Australian Football Club, the Whitlam 
Institute, and Cape York Group. She is 
a trustee of the University of Western 
Sydney and the Charlie Perkins Trust. 
She is Chair of the National Film and 
Sound Archive and child welfare agency, 
Barnardos Australia.

MS SANDRA CHIPCHASE
Destination NSW Director

Sandra Chipchase is CEO of Destination 
NSW and is a member the City of 
Sydney’s Retail Advisory Board, the 
Brand Australia Advisory Board, and 
the NSW Australia Day Committee.

Sandra brings a wealth of experience in 
international and domestic tourism and 
business events marketing, business 
and commercial asset management, 
and major events acquisition and 
management.

Her past roles have included senior 
positions with Tourism Australia in 
Frankfurt, Chicago and New York, and 
as General Manager Marketing at the 
Sydney Convention and Visitors Bureau 
(now Business Events Sydney). Sandra 
was co-author of the National Business 
Events Strategy and the NSW Visitor 
Economy Taskforce Report. Prior to 
her current role, Sandra was CEO of 
Melbourne Convention and Visitors 
Bureau and in 2011 she won the 
Outstanding Contribution to Industry 
National Award from Meetings and 
Events Australia.
 

THE HONOURABLE  
PATRICIA FORSYTHE
Destination NSW Director

Patricia Forsythe is the Executive 
Director of the Sydney Business 
Chamber and a director of Destination 
NSW, the Hunter Development 
Corporation, The Sydney Children’s 
Hospital Network Board, and 
Cricket NSW. She is also a member 
of Macquarie University Council, 
Honourary Associate Graduate School 
of Government University of Sydney, 
and a member of the University of 
Technology, Sydney School of Business 
Advisory Board. Patricia was a Member 
of the New South Wales Legislative 
Council from 1991 to 2006, and on the 
Opposition’s front bench from 1995 to 
2005 in a variety of shadow portfolios.
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Board of directors

MR SCOTT BOYES
Member Director

After holding the position of Regional 
General Manager for Victoria, Tasmania 
and South Australia since 2008, 
Scott Boyes relocated from Victoria 
to take up the position of Regional 
General Manager of Accor in NSW 
and ACT in July 2012. An experienced 
hotelier, Scott has been working in 
the hospitality industry since 1992, 
commencing his career with Accor Asia 
Pacific in 1994 upon graduation from 
the Blue Mountains International Hotel 
Management School.

In 1996, Scott was one of four 
people selected for Accor’s National 
Management Traineeship, a program 
designed to fast track individuals to the 
level of General Manager within the 
company. 

In 2005, he was one of three people 
from Australia and New Zealand to 
be awarded the prestigious Accor 
Bernache Award for his achievements 
in financial performance. The Bernache 
Award is the highest individual award 
within Accor, globally recognising 
individual performance throughout the 
group, which employs over 140,000 
people worldwide. 

MR GARY DALY
Member Director

Gary Daly is Managing Director 
of Exhibitions and Trade Fairs – a 
major exhibition organiser that runs 
upwards of five major exhibitions and 
conferences in Sydney each year. These 
exhibitions include the industry event, 
Australian Business Events Expo.

Prior to this appointment, Gary was 
General Manager, Sales at Luna Park 
Sydney, a role he had held since 2004. 
During his tenure at Luna Park, Gary’s 
focus had been to develop the iconic 
location as one of Sydney’s pre-eminent 
business events destinations. Prior to 
joining Luna Park, Gary held senior 
management positions in a number 
of media organisations including the 
Nine Network, Sky Channel, the Seven 
Network and Prime Television.

Gary continues to be a major advocate 
for Sydney as one of the world’s leading 
business events destinations.

MS KATHRYN HALPIN 
(NEE KATE SMITH)
Member Director

As Managing Director of WaldronSmith 
Management, Kate Halpin brings to 
the role 29 years’ experience in the 
business events industry, primarily in 
the hotel and conference management 
sectors.

Recognised as one of the country’s 
leading conference organisers, 
WaldronSmith Management has 
been in operation for 19 years. With 
offices in Sydney and Melbourne, Kate 
offers association clients substantial 
knowledge and expertise in the 
strategic planning and delivery of 
international and national conferences 
throughout Australia. Kate works 
extensively with suppliers and major 
stakeholders in the industry to ensure 
effective relationships produce 
outstanding results and Kate is actively 
involved in the industry through various 
boards and memberships.

MR TON VAN AMERONGEN
Special Advisor*

Ton van Amerongen is CEO of the 
Sydney Convention and Exhibition 
Centre and the Sydney Entertainment 
Centre. Ton has extensive global 
experience in the hotel, tourism and 
business events industries. Past roles 
have spanned finance and operations 
with five-star international hotel chains 
around the world, including his position 
as the first General Manager of the 
Park Lane Hotel when it opened in 
Sydney.

Ton is also a Founding Director of the 
Darling Harbour Business Association 
and the Chairman of the Business 
Events Council of Australia.

MS CAROLYN FLETCHER AM
Board Observer

Carolyn is a member of the Sydney 
Harbour Foreshore Authority Board, 
a founder and director of Black Isle 
Communications, a management 
communications consultancy, and 
founder and CEO of Opportunity 
Cambodia, a not-for-profit organisation 
that provides education and training for 
disadvantaged young people in rural 
Cambodia.

Among other positions, she was a 
board member of the Darling Harbour 
Authority, Chairman of the Australian 
Theatre for Young People (ATYP), and 
currently serves on ATYP’s Foundation 
Advisory Board.

In addition to its Member Directors, the Board benefits from 
the insights of two Advisors/Observers to the Board.

*Resigned effective 3 September 2013



LYN LEWIS-SMITH
Chief Executive Officer

With over 20 years’ experience in 
marketing, sales and tourism across 
the public and private sectors, Lyn 
leads BESydney global team of experts, 
which is responsible for delivering 
business events that generate 
economic returns and benefits beyond 
tourism to Sydney and New South 
Wales (NSW).

In her role as CEO, Lyn has been 
instrumental in progressing research 
into the far-reaching benefits 
of business events to industry, 
communities and the economy, guiding 
the company’s Asia growth strategy 
and developing the Ambassador and 
Future Leaders Programs. Her board 
appointments and memberships 
include:

• President of the Australian 
Association of Convention Bureaux

• Regional President, Sydney First, 
Sydney Business Chamber

• Regional Councillor, NSW Business 
Chamber

• Trustee of the Parramatta Park 
Trust

• Member of Property Council 
Australia’s Tourism Committee 
(NSW)

• Graduate and member of the 
Australian Institute of Company 
Directors

• Global Talent Hub Advisory Board 
Member

• Past Chair and member of the 
Future Convention Cities Initiative

SONYA STEWART
Chief Financial Officer

Sonya holds the role of Chief Financial 
Officer and her responsibilities extend 
to cover all corporate services within 
the company, including financial, 
human resource and information 
technology management. Sonya is also 
the appointed Company Secretary for 
BESydney.

During her time at BESydney, Sonya has 
had a particular focus on the human 
resource policies and programs of the 
company. Key strategies implemented 
by Sonya include a corporate culture 
and values program, best practice 
performance management framework, 
and increased investment in staff 
training programs.

Sonya has a broad mix of skills, having 
worked in a diverse range of industries. 
She obtained her Chartered Accountant 
qualification while working with KPMG 
before moving to premium beverage 
company Diageo. During her nine 
years with Diageo, she worked in a 
variety of in-market and head office 
finance roles based in Australia and 
the United Kingdom, culminating in 
her appointment as Head of Planning 
of United Distillers, London. Returning 
to Australia, Sonya held finance 
positions in the shipping industry and 
the charitable sector before joining 
BESydney in 2005.

HANNAH JAMIESON
General Manager
Strategic Marketing

Hannah joined BESydney as Head 
of Marketing in 2011 and brings 
17 years’ experience in marketing, 
communications and stakeholder 
relationship management across both 
the private and public sectors. 

Prior to this she was Marketing 
and Media Manager for Trade 
and Investment Queensland, the 
Queensland Government’s global 
business agency. 

In addition, Hannah brings four 
years’ international expertise gained 
in Europe, where she worked as 
Marketing Manager at the Victoria and 
Albert Museum in London, and in a 
number of consultancy roles in Paris.
 
As General Manager Strategic 
Marketing, Hannah draws on her strong 
experience in international business, 
major events and destination marketing 
to oversee BESydney’s marketing, 
strategic partnerships and bidding 
functions. 
 

KRISTIAN NICHOLLS
General Manager
Business Development

Kristian joined the BESydney team 
in October 2012 and brings over 10 
years’ experience in national and 
international relationship management, 
account management and bidding to 
his role as General Manager Business 
Development.

Kristian manages BESydney’s business 
development team, which spans 
Sydney, China, Singapore, India, North 
America and Europe. He has a unique 
understanding of the business events 
sector, gained from a number of senior 
positions in both sales and operations 
at the Sydney Convention and Exhibition 
Centre over almost 10 years. Prior to 
joining the BESydney team, Kristian 
was Director of Venues covering the 
Asia Pacific region for leading industry 
supplier, Staging Connections.

Passionate about supporting and 
developing young professionals within 
the industry, Kristian has shared his 
experience and knowledge through 
a range of mentoring programs. He 
is also a member of the Industry 
Advisory Board of the Blue Mountains 
International Hotel Management 
School.

ROBYN JOHNSON
General Manager
Event Delivery

Robyn joined BESydney in 2011 as 
Head of Client Services. Prior to this 
role, Robyn was Managing Director 
of Sydney-based conference and 
exhibition organiser, Conexion Event 
Management. Conexion won ‘Best 
Meeting or Conference’ at the inaugural 
2009 Australian Event Awards and 
again in 2011. Robyn brings 20 years’ 
experience with managing major 
national and international events 
and is a past winner of the Meetings 
and Events Australia award for ‘Best 
Operations Person’.
 
As General Manager Event Delivery, 
Robyn is responsible for ensuring that 
BESydney actively supports the events 
it secures for Sydney to maximise 
their economic benefit to NSW, while 
providing a high-quality experience for 
delegates and their host organisations. 
Additonally, Robyn has been working 
with Infrastructure NSW on transitional 
arrangements to ensure that Sydney 
continues to host major business 
events during the construction of ICC 
Sydney.

1312
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OUR NETWORK

BESydney enjoys support 
from a wide network of 
private and public sector 
stakeholders. In the 
following pages, we profile 
the valued partnerships 
and active engagement 
that have contributed to a 
successful year.

16 Major and strategic partners, 
and members

18 Ambassadors and future leaders

24 Government engagement at an 
all-time high



STRATEGIC PARTNERS
AND MEMBERS

Visit 
businesseventssydney.com.au  
for a full list of BESydney’s 
valued strategic partners and 
members
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that an even larger show footprint has 
been secured for 2014.

We also welcomed 22 new members 
to the family – welcome on board to all 
these organisations!

During 2012/13 members benefited 
from monthly training sessions, 
which ensured all members’ staff 
were making the most of BESydney 
opportunities. This initiative was in 
response to the volume of interest for 
the previously bi-monthly sessions. 
Members were also out in force at 
BESydney’s annual AccessNSW event, 
networking with clients and soaking up 
the Vivid Sydney festival.

ONGOING FAMIL ACTIVITY 
INTRODUCES A NEW SIDE OF SYDNEY 
AND NSW'S REGIONS TO ASIAN 
CLIENTS

Building on a strong track record 
of catering to the Asian corporate 
incentive market, BESydney set out to 
showcase a new side of Sydney and 
NSW’s regions to the ever-valuable 
markets of our northern neighbours 
through 9 familiarisation (famil) 
programs.

Some famils were organised by 
BESydney, others by partners such 
as Tourism Australia. All focused on 
showcasing the aspects of NSW that 
appeal to the tastes of Asian event 

planners, while demonstrating that 
both first-time and repeat visitors 
alike will always find something new 
to discover. Our famil visitors were 
introduced to fine food and wine, 
cultural experiences, journeys through 
history, luxury shopping, regional 
escapes and “first-ever” experiences 
throughout the 2012/13 program. 

BESydney would like to thank all of the 
strategic partners and members that 
went to great lengths to impress the 
clients that took part in these famils. 
They helped us to showcase the best 
that Sydney and NSW have to offer 
the growing Asian corporate incentive 
market.

HIGHLIGHTS

• Two new major partnerships, 
bringing the total to five

• 25 strategic partners,  
93% retention

• 22 new members
• 102 profiling opportunities in 

famils and site inspections

A STRONG YEAR FOR BESYDNEY’S 
STRATEGIC PARTNERS AND 
MEMBERS

BESydney enjoyed another year 
of strong support from its diverse 
membership base. In a year defined by 
both challenges and opportunities, the 
working relationships with the bureau’s 
major partners, strategic partners and 
members evolved and grew.

BESydney welcomed two new staff 
members to oversee these portfolios. 
Natalie Young assumed the role of 
Membership Account Manager in 
September 2012, while Ana Judge 
joined BESydney as the Head of 
Strategic Partnerships in March 2013. 

The bureau welcomed two new major 
partnerships in 2012/13 – Accor and 
City of Sydney. 

Accor has been a financial supporter 
of BESydney for some time. The group, 
which has previously been represented 
by 28 properties that spanned different 
membership categories, consolidated 
its support into a single major 
partnership in late 2012.

And, in December 2012, BESydney 
welcomed a new three-year major 
partnership with the City of Sydney. 
Injecting $500,000 a year between 
2014-16, this additional support will 

help to sustain Sydney’s position 
as Australia's leading business 
event destination, throughout the 
redevelopment of Darling Harbour, and 
will strengthen the city’s reputation as a 
collaborative, innovative and supportive 
city for international business events.  

BESydney would like to thank the NSW 
Government for its ongoing support 
through Destination NSW (DNSW) and 
Sydney Harbour Foreshore Authority 
(SHFA). In 2012/13, the bureau received 
increased investment from SHFA to aid 
with securing events for the city’s new 
convention centre from late 2016, while 
DNSW’s support continues to be vital to 
the organisation’s ongoing ability to win 
bids for Sydney and NSW.

Increased strategic partner 
engagement was a focus in 2012/13 
and a number of new initiatives were 
introduced. These include exclusive bid 
win announcement emails, increased 
involvement at client events, increased 
profiling in collateral, and new co-
operative advertising opportunities.

In February 2013, 12 strategic partners 
and members joined BESydney on the 
Destination NSW stand at the Asia 
Pacific Incentive and Meetings Expo 
(AIME) in Melbourne, ensuring the State 
had a strong presence at this leading 
industry trade show. The response was 
so positive from those who attended 



CELEBRITIES? WE THINK SO!

They’re not celebrities in the traditional sense, but in the 
business and academic worlds BESydney’s Ambassadors 
are making global headlines and helping to build a better 
tomorrow for us all.

The bureau’s Ambassador and Future Leaders programs 
bring together some of Australia’s and the world’s most 
inspiring leaders from a vast range of disciplines including 
medicine, science, agriculture, arts and business to assist 
the BESydney team with attracting business events to Sydney 
and NSW. 

To the right is a snapshot of just some of the significant 
achievements accomplished by BESydney's Ambassadors 
and Future Leaders during the 2012/13 financial year. ➤

 
HIGHLIGHTS

• Ambassadors and Future Leaders shared their 
insights at two advisory forums in 2012/13

• BESydney strengthened its engagement with 
the university and research sector via eight 
educational seminars and/or hosted VIP functions 
with the following groups:
– University of Technology, Sydney (UTS) 

and Research Directors from 18 Chinese 
universities

– UTS Faculty of Science
– National Information and Communications 

Technology Australia
– University of Wollongong ICT Research Centre 

with BESydney Ambassador Professor Farzad 
Safaei 

– Macquarie University with BESydney 
Ambassador Professor John Boyages

– NSW universities Directors of Research  
Offices

– Garvan Institute with BESydney Ambassador 
Professor Ron Trent
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OUR AMBASSADORS
AND FUTURE LEADERS

Professor Bill Carroll

Head of Neurology and Neurophysiology  
- Sir Charles Gairdner Hospital, Perth

Named Western Australian of the Year (business and 
professions category) for his contribution towards 

finding a cure for multiple sclerosis.

Professor Mark Baker

Professor of Proteomics, Department of Chemistry 
and Biomolecular Sciences, Macquarie University

Recipient of the 2012 Human Proteome Organisation 
(HUPO) Distinguished Service Award for his 

indispensable contributions to the organisation and 
mission of HUPO.

Professor Farzad Safaei

Professor of Telecommunications Engineering 
and Managing Director of ICT Research Institute, 

University of Wollongong (UOW)

Winner, 2012 National iAward for his ‘iSee’ technology, 
which combines virtual worlds and videoconferencing 

for use in education and collaborative projects.

Mr Panos Tzivanidis

Head of International Events and Accommodation, 
International Olympic Committee 

Appointed Head of International Events and 
Accommodation, International Olympic Committee 

in June 2013 (Panos’ previous role was Head of 
Travel and Conferences, Union of European Football 

Association).

Professor Judy Raper 

Deputy Vice-Chancellor (Research),  
University of Wollongong (UOW)

Appointed board member of the Australian Nuclear 
Science and Technology Organisation (ANSTO).

Professor John Boyages

Director, Macquarie Cancer Institute  
and Professor of Breast Oncology

NSW State Finalist for Australian of the Year 2013 
for his clinical excellence, unwavering commitment 

to patient care and innovative approaches to the 
detection of breast cancer and its treatment.

Professor Veena Sahajwalla

Director, Sustainable Materials Research and 
Technology, University of New South Wales (UNSW)

Winner of the top prize in The Australian Innovation 
Challenge 2012 for the development of technology 

that allows for rubber and recycled plastic containers 
to partly replace coking coal in generating power for 

the production of steel.

Professor Emeritus Ron McCallum AO

Law School, University of Sydney

Named 2012 International Day of People with 
Disability Patron. Ron, the first totally blind person 
appointed to a full professorship at any Australian 

university, also spoke of his experiences and 
achievements at TedX Sydney.

"I love the idea that I can keep a 
link with the city I love …[being an 
Ambassador] gives me a chance 
to find ways to bring conferences, 
people and ideas and keep a 
city like Sydney alive – so it’s an 
opportunity for me and a great 
honour." 
Professor Tim Entwisle, 
Chief Executive of the Royal Botanic Gardens in 
Melbourne and BESydney Ambassador
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BESYDNEY’S NIGHT OF NIGHTS: 
CELEBRATING OUR GLOBAL STARS

Each year BESydney celebrates and 
acknowledges the vital contributions 
of its global Ambassador network at 
its annual Ambassador Dinner and 
Investiture. 

Held at the Sydney Convention and 
Exhibition Centre on 13 May 2013, this 
year’s gala welcomed an additional 20 
Ambassadors and Future Leaders to 
the BESydney family. The program now 
boasts 79* Ambassadors and 8 Future 
Leaders.

The program’s Patron, NSW Deputy 
Premier Andrew Stoner, congratulated 
the group of global stars for their 
assistance with securing 63 business 
events and generating almost $400 
million in economic impact for the state 
across their years of involvement with 
BESydney.

“The NSW Government acknowledges 
that business events play a valuable 
role in helping us to raise the global 
profile of Sydney and NSW. By 
recruiting the talents of our nation’s 
industry leaders, as a group we can 
collaborate to drive innovation and 
competitiveness, and demonstrate 
leadership on a global stage,” Mr 
Stoner said. 

A new initiative introduced in late 
2012, part of the NSW Economic 
Development Framework, will see 
BESydney work in partnership with 
NSW Trade and Investment to expand 
the Ambassador network across the 
Government’s priority sectors and 
international markets. 

CEO Lyn Lewis-Smith was equally 
enthusiastic in her support of the 
program and its value to BESydney.
“Not only are our Ambassadors 
passionate about their work, they’re 
passionate about Sydney and NSW. 
Their expertise and esteemed 
reputations are absolutely invaluable,” 
she said. 

The dinner concluded with an expertly 
guided panel discussion about 
opportunity in Australia – Do we take it 
for granted? Is it a blessing or a curse? 

Jenny Brockie, host of Insight on SBS, 
guided the panel, which included 
leading business people David Hutton, 
(Lend Lease), Greg Hywood (Fairfax 
Media Limited) and Alex Malley (CPA 
Australia), as they navigated the topic 
and shared candid thoughts about 
Australia’s current economic, social 
and political climate. 

From the role of social media to the 
need to shift from the ‘Asian Century’ 
to the ‘Australasian Century’, skilled 
migration, and public policy and 
economic reform, discussion bounced 
between panelists before questions 
relating to climate change and green 
energy were fielded from the audience.

Answering the big question, "Australia... 
land of opportunity?", the three 
panelists agreed that Australia was 
inherently lucky and we needed to rise 
to meet challenges, not rely on our 
good fortune; and chase opportunities 
with a global mindset.

Mr Malley summed up the panel’s 
thoughts with his observation of 
the differences between emerging 
economies such as China and that of 
Australia, stating that, since World War 
II, Australia as a nation had begun to 
"rest on its laurels".

“Most Australians under 35 who are 
qualified and employed haven’t really 
suffered hardship like the generations 
before them. Often, if the difficulty of 
challenge isn’t there to overcome, the 
personal motivation to reach a higher 
level isn’t as fierce,” Mr Malley said.

21

Clockwise from top left
1. Panel discussion, Jenny Brockie, David Hutton, 

Greg Hywood and Alex Malley
2. NSW Deputy Premier, Andrew Stoner
3. 2013 Ambassador Dinner and Investiture
4. Richard Brandweiner and Professor Erik Schlogl
5. Ambasadors Professor Deo Prasad and  

Dr Noel Barton

2

1

3

4

5

"By recruiting the talents of our 
nation’s industry leaders, as a 
group we can collaborate to drive 
innovation and competitiveness, 
and demonstrate leadership on a 
global stage." 
Andrew Stoner 
NSW Deputy Premier

*As at 30 September 2013



2322

AMBASSADORS INVESTED IN 2012/13

Professor David Black AO ............. Professor of Organic Chemistry, School of Chemistry, University of New South Wales 
Mr Joe Catanzariti .....................................................................................................Vice President, Fair Work Commission
Mr Fred Chilton ............................................................................................................................ Partner, Emil Ford Lawyers
Dr Tim Entwisle ............................................................... Director and Chief Executive, Royal Botanic Gardens Melbourne 
Mr Jon Hutchison AM ................................................................. Business Events and Tourism Consultant, Dyland Pty Ltd 
Dr Adi Paterson ......................................................................................................................Chief Executive Officer, ANSTO 
Professor Jim Piper ...............................................................................................................................Macquarie University 
Professor Erik Schlogl ....................... Director, Qualitative Finance Research Centre, School of Finance and Economics,  

University of Technology Sydney 
Professor Peter Schofield ...................Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer, Neuroscience Research Australia 
Scientia Professor Michelle Simmons.......... Director, Centre for Quantum Computation & Communication Technology, 
 University of New South Wales
Professor Ron Trent .................... Director, Department of Molecular and Clinical Genetics, Royal Prince Alfred Hospital 
Professor Gordon Wallace .......... Executive Research Director, ARC Centre for Excellence for Electromaterials Science, 
 University of Wollongong 
Mr Geoff Buckley ................................................................................................Director, China Ready & Accredited Pty Ltd 
Professor Doug Jones AO ....................................................................................................................... Partner, Clayton Utz 
Mr Hael Kobayashi ...............Associate Director, Creative Industries Innovation Centre, University of Technology, Sydney 
Mr Paul Levins ........................................................................ President, Intellectual Ventures Australia and New Zealand 
Dr Ian Oppermann ..................................................................... Director, Digital Productivity and Services Flagship CSIRO 
The Honourable Warwick Smith AM ...........................................................Senior Managing Director, Chairman Australia  

& New Zealand (ANZ) Banking Group Limited 
Dr Bruce Spivey ..................................................................................... President, International Council of Ophthalmology 
Mr Timothy Walker AM ..........................................Chief Executive and Artistic Director, London Philharmonic Orchestra 

FUTURE LEADERS (AN EXTENSION OF THE AMBASSADOR PROGRAM INVOLVING EARLY CAREER RESEARCHERS 
AND INDUSTRY LEADERS) INVESTED IN 2012/13

Dr Yvette Blount .. Lecturer in Accounting, Department of Accounting and Corporate Governance, Macquarie University 
Associate Professor Richard Payne ............. Lecturer of Organic Chemistry and Chemical Biology, School of Chemistry, 
 University of Sydney 
Dr Pep Serow .................................................................. Senior Lecturer, School of Education, University of New England 
Ms Kate Fairlie ...............................................................................................................Chair, FIG Young Surveyors Network 

The inaugral Ambassadors and Future Leaders with The Deputy Premier of NSW and Lyn Lewis-Smith

"Sydneysiders have always been competitive. The new possibilities of the 
digital economy mean that we can collaborate and compete at the same 
time. Thinking big is what we do best. Now we have the possibility to tap 
into the potential of all Sydneysiders to build the future we all want." 

Lucy Hughes Turnbull
Chair, Committee for Sydney



The 2012/13 financial year 
saw BESydney’s engagement 
with the NSW Government go 
from strength to strength as 
together the organisations 
collaborated to drive a raft of 
initiatives aimed at helping 
the Government to restore 
economic growth and establish 
NSW as the ‘first place in 
Australia to do business.’

BESydney has used its Beyond Tourism 
Benefits: the Social Legacy of Business 
Events research findings to underpin its 
ongoing engagement with Government 
and build the business case for a new 
convention centre. Our new convention 
centre is not only an essential piece of 
infrastructure for the future of business 
events, the project is aligned with the 
Government’s objectives of rebuilding 
the economy and maintaining NSW’s 
standing as Australia’s commercial and 
economic hub. 

We also used these findings to 
demonstrate to Government how 
business events can contribute to 
achieving the goals and objectives set 
out in its 2021 plan - NSW 2021: A plan 
to make NSW number one. As a result 
of the state plan, the Government 
established six taskforces to develop a 
10-year growth plan for the industries 
they identified as priority sectors 
for the State. BESydney compiled a 
submission to each of these taskforces 
that demonstrated how business events 
can contribute to the growth of these 
sectors and the Government’s overall 
objectives. 

One of the key initiatives announced 
in the Government’s response to the 
industry taskforces was to work with 
BESydney to expand its Ambassador 
Program in line with these key priority 
sectors. And, to ensure a steady 
pipeline of events that will deliver 
maximium benefit to NSW, BESydney 
is working closely with the NSW 
Government to target events that 
align with the State’s priority industry 
sectors – sectors that have been 
identified by the Government as areas 
of strong growth, resilience, innovation, 
productivity, global competitiveness and 
new investment opportunities.  

Together, the bureau and the NSW 
Government are also working on the 
Global Talent Hub initiative (along 
with the Committee for Sydney and 
corporate partners) to position the 
harbour city as a magnet for attracting 
global talent. The Global Talent Hub 
initiative will support new research 
to better understand Sydney’s global 
positioning and the locational decisions 
that staff and companies make to 
ensure Sydney attracts and retains 
the world’s top talent. Here, business 
events have a role, too. An unexpected 
legacy that was identified in our 
research related to skilled migration. 

Some 40 respondents to the survey 
indicated that they knew of people who 
had relocated to Sydney as a result of 
participating at a business event. This 
extrapolates to 145 people from just five 
congresses – not a bad conversion rate!

The NSW Government recognises 
that a strong business event program 
– covering the many conferences, 
congresses, symposia and incentive 
programs that global destinations bid 
competitively to host – strengthens 
Sydney’s standing as a global city. They 
attract world leaders to our shores. 
They create opportunities to profile our 
expertise, to share knowledge, and to 
create and strengthen international 
collaboration. They are also valuable 
forums that foster trade and 
investment, spark innovation and fuel 
productivity. 

Business events have been identified as 
playing a prominent role in helping the 
Government to achieve its 2020 target of 
doubling overnight visitor expenditure in 
this state, as well as meeting the goals 
of the NSW Economic Development 
Framework, which sets out the actions 
needed to create a globally competitive, 
dynamic and resilient economy in NSW 
over the next decade.

The Deputy Premier is the patron of 
BESydney's Ambassador Program 
and has been tasked by the Premier 
to oversee the development of Darling 
Harbour. This level of government 
engagement is truly indicative of the 
vital place business events now have 
in discussions about industry and 
investment, education and innovation, 
fuelling productivity and knowledge 
economies. We are seeing real benefit 
in the business we have won thanks 
to our close and strengthening 
relationship with the Government. 
Particularly in Asia, where government 
credibility is high, we have been able 
to add significant value to our bids 
by demonstrating the strong backing 
we enjoy from our Premier, Deputy 
Premier and government ministers. 
We are envied across the globe for our 
close engagement with government.

We’ve made the paradigm shift. Our 
industry in NSW is in the best place 
it's been for a long time, with broader 
understanding and even broader 
support across government and 
business. 
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DRAWING ON OUR STRENGTHS:  
GOVERNMENT ENGAGEMENT  

AT AN ALL-TIME HIGH
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OUR RESULTS

Key highlights from 
BESydney’s calendar of activity 
are featured in the following 
pages.

28 Events secured in 2012/13

29 Events delivered in 2012/13 

30 Key highlights of our activity

32 The ICC Sydney story

40 Leveraging our unique 
culture, creativity and 
celebration to win events

44 Case study: Worldwide 
Chinese Life Insurance 
Congress 2012

46 Case study: 16th International 
Congress of Dietetics
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In 2012/13, BESydney secured 73 events 
that will attract 33,908 delegates who 
will spend 131,127 delegate days in 
Sydney and New South Wales. The 
estimated economic impact (EI) of 
these events is $113.1 million.

Association events secured by 
BESydney as at 30 June 2013

Number of events: 35
Number of delegate days: 59,450 
Estimated EI: $46.5 million

Corporate events secured by BESydney 
as at 30 June 2013

Number of events: 38
Number of delegate days: 71,677 
Estimated EI: $66.6 million

Event name Delegates Delegate days Est. value

ASSOCIATION – International

The World Youth and Student Travel Conference WYSTC 2013  800  3,200 $5,386,164 

20th International Congress of Cytology 2019  1,200  6,000 $4,811,970 

International Symposium on Rock Fragmentation By Blasting - FRAGBLAST 2015  600  2,400 $2,236,228 

International Foster Care Organisation (IFCO) World Conference 2015  700  2,100 $2,161,492 

International Association of Restructuring Insolvency Bankruptcy 
Professionals (INSOL) World Quadrennial Congress 2017  800  2,400 $2,107,264 

Asia Pacific Region Conference of the International Union Against Tuberculosis 
and Lung Disease 2015  600  2,400 $1,973,916 

Annual World Congress of SBMT on Brain, Spinal Cord Mapping and Image 
Guided Therapy 2014  500  1,500 $1,922,100 

Mid-Year Meeting of the International Neuropsychological Society - INS 2015  600  2,400 $1,711,604 

Advanced Photonics 2015  400  2,000 $1,661,380 

Astronomical Data Analysis Software and Systems Conference (ADASS) 2015  300  900 $1,070,520 

Asian Medical Education Association Conference - AMEA 2015  500  1,500 $1,053,632 

ASSOCIATION – National

National Family Day Care Conference 2015  700  2,800 $1,839,070 

CORPORATE – Incentive

Mega incentive program 2014 4,500 22,500 $22,455,000 

NTA Naturally Plus Japan 2015  2,000  8,000 $7,984,000 

LG Group 2013  820  3,280 $3,273,440 

BC Card Customers Incentive 2013  540  2,700 $2,694,600 

Krungthai AXA Insurance Incentive 2014  300  1,500 $1,497,000 

Goldensun Technology China Annual Incentive 2013  260  1,300 $1,297,400 

PT Kalbe Farma, Sanghiang Indonesia Incentive 2013  270  1,080 $1,077,840 

CORPORATE – Meetings

vForum 2013  5,000  10,000 $6,299,890 

SOME HIGHLIGHT EVENTS WON IN 2012/13

In 2012/13, 86 events that BESydney 
previously secured for New South 
Wales (NSW) took place. These events 
attracted 54,143 delegates who spent a 
combined 210,774 days in Sydney and 
NSW. The estimated economic impact 
of these events is $175.5 million.

Association events held in 2012/13  
previously secured by BESydney as at 
June 2013

Number of events: 48
Number of delegate days: 120,736 
Estimated EI: $105.3 million

Corporate meetings and incentives  
held in 2012/13 previously secured by 
BESydney as at June 2013

Number of events: 38
Number of delegate days: 90,038 
Estimated EI: $70.2 million

Event name Delegates Delegate days Est. value*

ASSOCIATION – International

International Congress of Parkinson's Disease and Movement Disorders 2,500  12,500 $9,953,200

16th International Congress of Dietetics 2,270  9,080 $9,195,902

Scientific Meeting of the International Society of Hypertension 1,800  10,800 $7,420,428

Sydney International Breast Cancer Congress 948  3,792 $3,554,879

Joint Australian Association for Research in Education and Asia Pacific 
Educational Research Association Conference 1,195  4,780 $3,522,833

be active 2012 (International Congress on Physical Activity and Public Health) 1,272  5,088 $3,226,301

19th International Liver Transplantation Society Annual International Congress 950  3,800 $2,994,211

International Conference on Arabidopsis Research 634  1,902 $1,866,598

ASSOCIATION – National

Australian Library and Information Association Biennial Conference 550  2,200 $5,228,030

Health Informatics Society of Australia National Conference 894  4,470 $3,100,570

Australian Council for Educational Research Conference 1,000  3,000 $916,500

CORPORATE – Incentive

Worldwide Chinese Life Insurance Congress 2,600  10,400 $10,379,200

AIA Thailand Annual Convention 1,650  6,600 $6,586,800

Amway Malaysia Incentive 768  3,840 $3,832,320

LG Group 820  3,280 $3,273,440

BC Card Customers Incentive 540  2,700 $2,694,600

CORPORATE – Meetings

vForum 2012 6,500  13,000 $6,532,693

Home Grown Gaming 5,000  15,000 $5,205,380

Imagine Cup 1,000  5,000 $5,057,200

SOME HIGHLIGHT EVENTS DELIVERED IN 2012/13

Events secured in 2012/13 Events delivered in 2012/13

Actual values as at 30 September 2013



SHINING THE SPOTLIGHT  
ON SYDNEY

The bureau’s efforts to enhance its 
services and international profile 
throughout the year were rewarded with 
an impressive line up of prestigious 
awards and accolades. BESydney’s 
excellent service and the passion of our 
dedicated team were recognised by the 
following awards:

• Winner - National Metropolitan 
Destination Marketing Award, 
Meetings and Events Australia 
(MEA) Awards 2013

• Winner - Specialised Tourism 
Services Award, NSW Tourism 
Awards 2012

• Silver Award - Business Tourism 
Award, NSW Tourism Awards 2012

• Prevue's inaugural Destination 
Visionary Award 2012.

Sydney continued to boost its enviable 
reputation as the first place in Australia 
for international business events, 
topping the country’s results in the 
International Congress and Convention 
Association’s Country and City 
Rankings Report 2012.

The harbour city ranked first in 
Australia for conferences and 
congresses and number 24 worldwide, 
a rise of 10 places from last year. 
Sydney also ranked sixth in the Asia-
Pacific region.

THE FUTURE IS BRIGHT: 
INTERNATIONAL CONVENTION 
CENTRE SYDNEY (ICC SYDNEY) AND 
SYDNEY EXHIBITION CENTRE @ 
GLEBE ISLAND          

In September 2012, BESydney took on 
the responsibility of managing booking 
enquiries and marketing for both the 
ICC Sydney and the temporary Sydney 
Exhibition Centre @ Glebe Island until 
the operators of the new facilities were 
appointed.

Following the much-anticipated 
announcement of Darling Harbour 
Live (formerly Destination Sydney) as 
the successful consortium selected to 
design, build and manage the new ICC 
Sydney facility in mid-December 2012, 
BESydney took the exciting news to the 

international market in 2013. The team 
represented ICC Sydney at the Asia-
Pacific Incentive and Meetings Expo 
(AIME) and IMEX Frankfurt, discussing 
the enhanced and expanded precinct 
with eager international and domestic 
clients. Advertising and public relations 
activity, profiling in bid documentation 
and collateral, and presentations on 
sales trips and at BESydney-hosted 
client events have been among the 
activities undertaken by the bureau to 
introduce the world to ICC Sydney and 
the opportunities this new facility will 
offer smart events of the future. 

These efforts have already begun to 
pay off with five* international events 
already secured by BESydney for ICC 
Sydney in 2012/13 and many more in 
the pipeline heading into 2013/14. 

BESydney’s role in promoting the 
temporary exhibition and tradeshow 
facility, Sydney Exhibition Centre @ 
Glebe Island, saw BESydney consult 
widely with government and industry 
stakeholders to develop branding 
and marketing strategies to satisfy 
and exceed expectations. BESydney 
developed a brand proposal that was 
adopted by AEG Ogden, the appointed 
operator of the new facility upon its 
opening in 2014.

Heading into 2013/14, BESydney will 
manage the consumer awareness 
campaign targeting up to 300,000 
patrons who are expected to visit 
Sydney Exhibition Centre @ Glebe Island 
each year.

SYDNEY – A BRIGHT AND  
BEAUTIFUL CITY

The rankings from 2012/13 speak for 
themselves:

• #1 Australian business event 
destination1

• #1 destination in Australia2

• 2nd most innovative city in the 
Asia Pacific3

• #3 in the world for health, safety 
and security4

• 3rd most reputable city in the 
world5

• #6 in the world for intellectual 
capital and innovation6

MEDIA COVERAGE

• Over 400 pieces of coverage 
in national and international 
industry and mainstream media

 
WEBSITE AUDIENCE 
(compared to 2011/12)

• Visits are up 52%, with an 
average of 14,389 visits to the 
site each month

• Pages views have increased 28%
• International traffic to the 

website has increase in key 
markets – China 880%, India 
71%, US 25%, UK 46%

 
INTERNATIONAL PROFILING

• Attended 12 industry tradeshows 
and roadshows throughout the 
world

BUILDING 
SYDNEY’S PROFILE:

HIGHLIGHTS 
AT A GLANCE

"This great 
result wouldn’t 
be possible 
without our global 
team including 
government and 
business partners, 
Ambassadors and 
Future Leaders, 
Strategic Partners 
and Members. 
This is a whole-of-
city achievement 
of which we can all 
be proud."
Lyn Lewis-Smith
CEO, Business Events Sydney
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Artist’s impression of the ICC Sydney precinct courtesy of HASSELL + Populous and Darling Harbour Live

Artist’s impression of Sydney Exhibition Centre

1 UIA City Ranking 2012
2 Trip Advisor Traveller’s Choice Awards 2012
3 Solidance The Most Innovative Cities in the 
Asia Pacific 2013

4 PwC Cities of Opportunity Report 2012
5 2012 City RepTrak Report
6 PwC Cities of Opportunity Report 2012

*As at 30 September 2013

Artist’s impression of Sydney Exhibition Centre
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THE ICC SYDNEY STORY:  
FROM ADVOCACY TO 

LEADING EVENT PRECINCT 

Sydney is set to usher in a new 
age of business events when 
the International Convention 
Centre Sydney (ICC Sydney) 
opens in late 2016. ICC 
Sydney represents a unique 
opportunity for the renewal 
and revitalisation of Darling 
Harbour, and will ensure that 
Sydney remains at the forefront 
of the rapidly changing world of 
business events.

The 2012/13 financial year brought 
with it many key milestones in this 
major development, including the 
announcement of Darling Harbour Live 
as the successful consortium to design, 
develop and operate the new facilities 
and advances in the planning approval 
process.

With construction of ICC Sydney set to 
begin in December this year, we take a 
look at how far the plans for the centre 
have come and outline the exciting 
milestones ahead for this revolutionary 
development.
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Artist’s impression of ICC Sydney courtesy of HASSELL + Populous and Darling Harbour Live

"The redevelopment goes far beyond improving 
facilities – it’s also about re-shaping the city."
The Honourable Barry O’Farrell
Premier of New South Wales
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Government calls for 
expressions of interest 
for the redevelopment 
of Darling Harbour 
from the private sector.

Infrastructure NSW 
is established to 
develop a 20-year 
infrastructure plan for 
NSW. The facilities at 
Darling Harbour are 
part of their remit.
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The Centre closes.
Construction of ICC 
Sydney scheduled to 
commence.

Following rigorous 
evaluation, Darling 
Harbour Live (formerly 
Destination Sydney) 
is announced as the 
preferred consortium. 
Darling Harbour Live 
comprises Lend Lease, 
Capella Capital, AEG 
Ogden and Spotless.

Construction of the 
southern commercial 
and residential district 
to commence.

The plans for the new 
facilities progress 
through planning 
approval process.

The Sydney 
Entertainment Centre 
scheduled to close.

Construction of the 
interim exhibition 
facility, Sydney 
Exhibition Centre @ 
Glebe Island, begins. 
First show scheduled 
to take place in Feb 
2014.

ICC Sydney and 
improved public spaces 
at Darling Harbour 
open.

UPCOMING MILESTONES
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TIMELINE

1

2

3

4

5

1. Little Hay Street retail and 
residential

2. ICC Sydney exhibition 
centre meeting room

3. The Theatre from 
Tumbalong Park

4. Public Domain, Pier Street
5. Exhibition Centre from 

Tumbalong Park



EVENT WINS  
FORGE FUTURE  

FOR HARBOUR CITY

Business Events Sydney (BESydney) has 
secured a total of five* international 
events for the new facilities from fields 
spanning everything from cytology to 
quantity surveying. These events are 
estimated to be worth over $30 million 
for the State.

This comes on top of the 60 expressions 
of interest from national association 
events for the new centre.

NSW Deputy Premier Andrew Stoner, 
who has been charged with overseeing 
the development of the new convention, 
exhibition and entertainment precinct, 
was encouraged by the bid wins and 
commented that they were “a great 
show of confidence and support for the 
Government’s decision to invest in the 
Darling Harbour facilities.”

ICC Sydney is already receiving strong 
interest from the global market. 
Following the December 2012 
announcement that Darling Harbour 
Live had been selected as the preferred 
consortium to design, build and operate 
the world-class facilities, BESydney 
stepped up its campaign to fill the new 
centre. ICC Sydney took centre stage at 
a number of tradeshows throughout the 
year, including at AIME in Melbourne 
and IMEX in Frankfurt, attracting a 
flurry of media and industry interest.

“The finished exhibition, entertainment 
and convention facilities will be world-
class. It’s very encouraging to see an 
increasing number of events signing 
up to utilise this exciting new space,” 
commented CEO Business Events 
Sydney, Lyn Lewis-Smith.

Sydney’s sights are firmly 
focused on the future with 
a healthy line up of events 
already secured to take place  
in ICC Sydney from 2017.

“There is the very real possibility that 
discoveries and connections made 
through the diverse events that will be 
held at ICC Sydney will result in new 
innovations and advances that will 
benefit local communities in Australia 
and across the world,” she said. 

Mr Stoner said the NSW Government 
was keen to build on Sydney’s 
reputation as Australia's global city and 
a major financial centre in the Asia-
Pacific region.

“With work starting on ICC Sydney at 
the end of the year, it’s impressive to 
see this much business secured before 
the construction has even started,” 
commented Deputy Premier Stoner. 

“Four of these events are leading 
professional services meetings – a 
great alignment with the Government’s 
economic development plan that 
includes a focus on the State’s finance 
and business services.

 “Our talent and our companies are 
among the best in the world and we 
have some of the world’s leading 
professional service firms covering 
industries like business advisory and 
consultancy, legal services, marketing, 
public relations, accountancy and 
human resources,” Mr Stoner said.

Mr Michael Rose, Chief Executive 
Partner of Allens and Chair of the 
Committee for Sydney’s Professional 
Services Taskforce added, "Attracting 
major business events and conventions 
to Sydney is fundamental to building 
this success and the Committee for 
Sydney is pleased to see that the 
city's prospect of the new convention 
centre is already having such a positive 
impact". 

The following international events 
have been secured for Sydney’s new 
convention and exhibition facilities:

• International Bar Association (IBA) 
Annual Conference 2017 
4,000 delegates, estimated 
economic impact of $17.9 million

• International Association for the 
Protection of Intellectual Property 
(AIPPI) Congress 2017 
2,000 delegates, estimated 
economic impact of $7.2 million

• International Association 
of Restructuring Insolvency 
Bankruptcy Professionals (INSOL) 
World Quadrennial Congress 2017 
800 delegates, estimated economic 
impact of over $2.1 million

• Pacific Association of Quantity 
Surveyors Congress 2018 
500 delegates, estimated economic 
impact of $1.6 million

• 20th International Congress of 
Cytology in 2019 
1,200 delegates, estimated 
economic impact of $4.8 million

A PLACE TO LIVE, WORK AND PLAY

In addition to offering state-of-the-
art conference facilities, ICC Sydney 
will become an innovation hub and 
one of the city’s most vibrant ‘live, 
work and play’ destinations.

An exciting fusion of commercial, 
residential, retail and educational 
spaces will come together to form 
the Haymarket precinct in the 
south of the ICC Sydney site. The 
Haymarket will house the offices 
of international corporations, 
complementing the south-western 
edge of Darling Harbour, which has 
become an energetic hub for the 
media, technology and IT industries.

The Haymarket will also feature 
a proposed IQ Hub, which will 
support and encourage emerging 
local creative and technological 
industries by providing student 
accommodation, as well as low-cost, 
purpose-built workspaces for  
start-ups, students and social 
initiatives. 

This vibrant urban precinct will 
draw the state’s (and the world’s) 
brightest minds, encouraging 
collaboration with international 
industry and strong connections to 
attract future business events to 
Sydney and NSW. 

The Haymarket will become a new 
centre for technical innovation, 
appealing to a diverse mix of 
professionals, families, students 
and residents, with enhanced 
connectivity right through to the 
harbour foreshore.

"Attracting major business events and conventions to Sydney is 
fundamental to building this success and the Committee for Sydney is 
pleased to see that the city's prospect of the new convention centre is 
already having such a positive impact."
Michael Rose 
Chief Executive Partner of Allens and Chair of the  
Committee for Sydney’s Professional Services Taskforce

ICC Sydney from Harbourside Place
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*As at 30 September 2013
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Never afraid to reinvent itself 
and challenge tradition, Sydney 
is welcoming a new era of 
innovation, creativity and 
exceptional event experiences.

ICC Sydney is certainly big news for the 
global events community, but let’s not 
forget that Sydney has charged ahead 
with plans for new meetings spaces 
and some of the world’s most ambitious 
urban renewal projects. Some of these, 
such as The Star’s Event Centre, and 
Royal Randwick’s $150 million renewal 
are open, others are much anticipated, 
such as Barangaroo’s once-in-a-
hundred-year development and Four 
Points by Sheraton’s big expansion 
plans. One thing is for certain, be 
it evolution or revolution, Sydney’s 
developments will delight meeting 
planners and delegates alike.

In the lead up to these venues opening 
their doors, the city’s diverse array of 
existing venues are collaborating and 
innovating like never before. Lyn Lewis-
Smith, CEO of Business Events Sydney 
(BESydney) comments, “The news that 
the Sydney Convention and Exhibition 
Centre will close in December to 
make way for ICC Sydney has in fact 
been a great opportunity for Sydney to 
showcase its diverse venues and the 
agility and flexibility of its suppliers.

“We’ve had inner city hotels combine 
forces and provide innovative solutions 
to cater for international conference 
requirements. The venue options are 
abundant in Sydney. The city is well and 
truly open for business!”

Indeed, BESydney’s proactive 
engagement with clients has ensured 
that 77 per cent of international 
events that had been secured for the 
convention centre during what will now 
be the construction period (2014-16) 
have been retained and re-homed 
across the city. Most notably, the 105th 
Rotary International Convention, which 
is expected to be worth an estimated 
$57.9 million and is expected to bring 
up to 17,000 delegates to Sydney in 
June 2014, has found a new home at 
Sydney Olympic Park. Further, the IUCN 
World Parks Congress, for around 
3,000 delegates, will be held at Sydney 
Showground, and the IEEE International 
Conference on Communication’s 1,200 
delegates will be catered for between 
Sheraton on the Park and Hilton Sydney 
hotels. 

Meanwhile, a growing number of 
conferences are tapping into the 
specialised knowledge hubs that exist 
in regional areas, while other national 
conferences are breathing fresh air into 
their annual events by taking delegates 
out of the city and benefiting from 
sophisticated events infrastructure in 
locations such as the Hunter Valley and 
Wollongong.

EVENTS SECURED 
2014 - 2016
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Throughout the redevelopment period, Sydney remains open for business with almost 80 events 
already secured for the city, including the events listed below.

Event Year Delegates
Estimated  

economic impact

105th Rotary International Convention 2014 17,000 $57,894,960

Mega incentive program 2014 4,500 $22,455,000

IUCN World Parks Congress 2014 3,000 $23,678,280

Sweet Adelines Regional Convention 2014 1,500 $6,400,975

Incentive program 2014 1,400 $5,588,800

IEEE International Conference on Communications 2014 1,200 $5,043,360

World Congress of the International Union of Angiology 2014 1,000 $5,014,300

International Conference of Neuroendocrinology and Society of Behavioral 

Neuroendocrinology 2014 2014 1,000 $4,325,620

International Fertilizer Association Annual Conference 2014 1,500 $3,951,120

Australian Library and Information Association (ALIA) Information Online 2015 1,000 $3,665,830

World Hydrogen Technologies Convention 2015 1,000 $3,099,780

International Workshop on Chronic Lymphocytic Leukemia 2015 1,000 $2,287,000

International Anglo Indian Reunion 2016 1,000 $5,796,000

2

1

3

1. The jewel facade 
of The Star’s Event 
Centre

2. Barangaroo
3. Royal Randwick

*As at 30 September 2013



Leveraging New South Wales' 
major event calendar has 
become an integral part 
of BESydney’s strategy for 
attracting international 
events to the state. And, with 
the largest light, music and 
ideas festival in the Southern 
Hemisphere, why not?

Vivid Sydney proved to be one of 
the year’s major drawcards for 
conferences, incentives and events, 
offering a unique and enchanting 
backdrop for creative minds to connect, 
collaborate and innovate. 

The bright lights and water shows 
also provided the perfect backdrop 
for four BESydney-hosted activities: 
two familiarisations and two business 
events.

BUSINESS EVENTS EXCHANGE

Held in Dockside’s Cockle Bay rooms 
on Tuesday 4 June, Business Events 
Exchange saw 77 Sydney-based 
executive assistants and event planners 
from national association, government 
and corporate organisations join the 
bureau to hear insider tips from one 
of Australia’s most successful event 
producers, David Grant and learn more 
about AccessNSW’s free event planning 
service.

Following David’s seminar, BESydney 
General Manager Event Delivery Robyn 
Johnson detailed the city’s exciting 
new and upcoming developments, 
such as The Star Event Centre and the 
upgraded Royal Randwick racecourse 
in her ‘What’s New in Sydney?’ update.

40 41

1 and 2.  
Networking at the 
Business Events 
Exchange

3. David Grant presenting 
at Business Events 
Exchange

3. Vivid Sydney 2013
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• 19th International Symposium 
of Electronic Art 
7-16 June, 562 delegates over 
10 days, economic impact of 
$2,525,707*

• 9th Conference on Creativity 
and Cognition 
17-20 June, 110 delegates over 
four days, economic impact of 
$289,749*

• The Australian International 
Design Forum 
31 May, 180 delegates over two 
days, estimated economic impact 
of $123,354*

• BC Card Korea Incentive 
23-27 May, 540 delegates over 
five days, economic impact of 
$2,694,600*

• Goldensun Technology China 
Incentive 
24-28 May, 260 delegates over 
five days, economic impact of 
$1,297,400*

• IDX Indonesia Incentive 
6-9 June, 250 delegates over four 
days, estimated economic impact 
of $998,000*

INCENTIVES AND EVENTS SECURED BY BESYDNEY THAT COINCIDED 
WITH VIVID SYDNEY INCLUDED:

SYDNEY’S UNIQUE CULTURE
OF CREATIVITY AND CELEBRATION  

A HUGE DRAWCARD FOR 
INTERNATIONAL EVENTS

*Actuals as at 30 September 2013
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VIVID BUSINESS FORUM 

Be bold, think deeply and feed an 
appetite for risk: Is this the recipe for 
Sydney’s future success?

Hosted by BESydney on Wednesday 5 
June at the Museum of Contemporary 
Art (MCA), the event featured a panel 
of leading Sydney thought leaders 
from the information communications 
technology, urban design and medical 
research fields who debated the 
relevance of innovation in today’s 
society.

Panellists Professor Hugh Durrant-
Whyte, CEO, National Information and 
Communications Technology Australia, 
Dr Tim Williams, CEO, Committee 
for Sydney, and Professor Mathew 
Vadas, Executive Director, University 
of Sydney, Centenary Institute of 
Cancer Medicine and Biology, shone a 
spotlight on the creative work that will 
change the face of tomorrow, while at 
the same time highlighting what still 
needed to be done to secure Sydney’s 
entrepreneurial future.

“When Sydney fires, the nation booms. 
Smart cities require smart governance,” 
said Dr Williams.

Professor Durrant-Whyte added that 
innovation was “not about concrete, it’s 
about connections and collaboration”, 
and Professor Vadas commented 
that “it’s okay to fail”, suggesting that 
Australia needed a cultural change, 
becoming more accepting of the fact 
that setbacks are the key ingredients of 
ultimate success.

Business events
Also finding leverage alongside the light 
installations and projections of Vivid 
Sydney was the Australian International 
Design Forum, held on 31 May at MCA. 
The Forum, which aligned with the 
government’s priority sector of creative 
industries, attracted 180 delegates 
and had an economic impact of over 
$123,000 for NSW.

Aligning the Design Forum with Vivid 
Sydney and making the most of the 
MCA’s vast harbour views ensured that 
delegates got to maximise their time 
in Sydney and take advantage of the 
festival’s extensive creative program.

BESydney CEO Lyn Lewis-Smith 
encouraged international conferences 
and incentive and reward groups to tap 
into the Destination NSW (DNSW) Major 
Event Calendar, which, in addition to 
Vivid Sydney, included celebrations 
such as The Sydney Writers' Festival, 
Chinese New Year and New Year’s Eve, 
to pack extra punch into their Sydney 
events. 

“There’s more to Vivid Sydney than 
bright lights and water shows. Now in 
its fifth year, the festival is becoming 
a major drawcard for conferences, 
incentives and familiarisations, offering 
a unique, enchanting backdrop for 
business events held in Sydney,” Ms 
Lewis-Smith said. 

Famils
BESydney also hosted two corporate 
client famils for decision makers from 
Indonesia, Malaysia and Thailand, and 
senior decision makers from China 
during the festival.

The groups came to Sydney to 
familiarise themselves with the 
traditional sights of the city and its 
regions, and were thrilled by Vivid 
Sydney’s exciting program of music and 
events and, of course, the famous light 
installations that illuminated the city 
during their stay.

"When Sydney fires, 
the nation booms. 
Smart cities require 
smart governance."
 
Dr Time Williams, 
CEO, Committee for Sydney
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1 and 3.  
Networking at the Vivid 
Business Forum

2. Professor Hugh Durrant-Whyte
4. Dr Tim Williams
5. Professor Mathew Vadas
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CASE STUDY
WORLDWIDE CHINESE LIFE 

INSURANCE CONGRESS 2012

SYDNEY 
9-12 AUGUST 2012

During a year punctuated by NSW 
Government trade missions to Asia, 
BESydney was proud to have secured 
another key event for Australia–
Asia business relationships, the 
Worldwide Chinese Life Insurance 
Congress (WWCLIC) 2012. Attracting 
2,600 Chinese-speaking insurance 
professionals from around the world, 
the event not only contributed an 
estimated $10 million to the NSW 
economy, but provided valuable 
opportunities for local businesses 
to engage, collaborate and explore 
commercial opportunities with 
delegates.

WWCLIC is an annual congress and 
professional development event 
for Chinese-speaking finance and 
insurance professionals. It aims to help 
professionals, the majority of whom 
are from China, to build international 
networks, as well as explore and share 
experiences within the industry. 

The 2012 event in Sydney was a 
landmark in the congress series: it 
was the first time the congress had 
been held outside of Asia in an English-
speaking country. BESydney had been 
pursuing this high-profile professional 
services event since 2005. 

Lyn Lewis-Smith, CEO of BESydney, 
said “Hosting the Worldwide Chinese 
Life Insurance Congress in Sydney 
was both a great honour and a great 
opportunity for NSW. BESydney and 
the NSW Government saw value in the 
opportunities for our local industry 
and WWCLIC delegates to share 
knowledge, deepen understanding and 
build relationships that will be mutually 
beneficial. Some of Australia’s largest 
trading partners are Asian countries. 
For example, NSW has attracted 
US$10.8 billion of Chinese investment 
over the past six years."

Recognising its importance, the Deputy 
Premier spoke at the opening of the 
event, while the Premier addressed 
a VIP group of approximately 150 
business leaders. This strong 
government participation is crucial to 
the development of long-term, fruitful 
business relationships between NSW 
and Chinese companies. 

Chairman and Founder of Insurance 
Marketing Management, the 
organiser of WWCLIC,  Mr Tien Lung 
Liang, commented, “As one of the 
key objectives of the congress is to 
stimulate professional growth and to 
build international networks, Australia’s 
financial capital was a natural choice 
for the event.”

WWCLIC 2012 is just one example of 
leading events within the financial and 
professional services sectors that have 
selected Sydney in recent years. 

“Sydney has a strong track-record in 
attracting events that fall within the 
financial and professional services 
sector. This highlights the fact that our 
city offers events more than just our 
beautiful harbour setting – these events 
are attracted to our dynamic business 
environment, successful economic 
strategies and the concentration of 
Asia-Pacific companies headquartered 
here,” comments Lyn Lewis-Smith.

“In June 2012 we played host to the 
prestigious World Congress of the 
Bachelier Finance Society and, we’ve 
secured the 2017 International Bar 
Association Annual Conference for the 
new ICC Sydney. Our success in winning 
events of this calibre is only destined to 
grow when you consider developments 
such as Barangaroo, which is set to 
cement our status as a leading financial 
hub in the Asia-Pacific.”

"Sydney has a strong track-record in attracting events that fall within the 
financial and professional services sector. This highlights the fact that 
our city offers events more than just our beautiful harbour setting – these 
events are attracted to our dynamic business environment, successful 
economic strategies and the concentration of Asia-Pacific companies 
headquartered here."
Lyn Lewis-Smith
CEO, Business Events Sydney
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CASE STUDY
16th INTERNATIONAL  

CONGRESS OF DIETETICS

SYDNEY 
5-8 SEPTEMBER 2012

Nutrition research and innovation 
were on the menu in Sydney when the 
city welcomed more than 2,200 of the 
world’s leading dietitians, nutritionists 
and nutrition science researchers for 
the 16th International Congress of 
Dietetics (ICD) 2012.

ICD 2012 marked the first time the 
high-profile, quadrennial event had 
been held in Australia in over 35 years.

The bidding journey for the event began 
in 2000 when a bid was submitted 
for ICD 2008. The 2008 congress was 
awarded to Japan, however, Australia’s 
strong bid resulted in an invitation by 
the ICD to submit an expression of 
interest to host the 2012 congress. 

The successful bid, submitted in 2004, 
was led by the Executive Director of 
the Dietitians Association of Australia 
(DAA), Claire Hewat. The DAA is 
Australia’s peak nutrition body and 
the professional member association, 
representing around 4,800 dietitians 
and nutritionists, nutrition scientists, 
dietetics students and associate and 
affiliate members. 

The bid cited Australia’s dietary issues 
and included Medicare’s decision to 
include the services of dietitians in its 
plan to combat the country’s obesity 
epidemic.

With assistance from BESydney, the 
DAA secured the congress for Australia, 
and the four-day event was held on 
5-8 September 2012 at the Sydney 
Convention and Exhibition Centre (The 
Centre).

A dedicated project officer with an 
extensive understanding of event 
organisation and coordination was 
appointed by DAA to provide operational 
support for the congress and to ensure 
the planning process ran smoothly. 

The congress, which was shaped 
around the theme LEAP: Leadership, 
Evidence and Advancing Practice, 
attracted over 2,200 professionals 
from almost 60 countries. A strong 
Australian contingent of over 1,250 
professionals supported the event, 
along with over 300 students.

The event created valuable 
opportunities for participants to present 
and share their experiences, explore 
new directions, discuss professional 
challenges and proactively set the 
international research and action 
agenda for the future. 

The Centre was able to cater for all 
delegate needs (400 had specific 
dietary requirements and more than 
100 were vegetarian) from its extensive 
compendium of over 500 individual 
dishes. Despite the diverse range of 
dietary requirements, all dishes were 
drawn from The Centre’s existing menu 
with the exception of a gluten-free pie 
created especially for the congress’ 
welcome drinks event. Delegates 
enjoyed fresh, healthy food at the three 
lunches and cocktail party that were 
held at the venue during the course of 
the congress, showcasing the creativity 
and flexibility of the venue’s food and 
beverage department.

Claire Hewat, DAA CEO, said the 
association was thrilled to welcome the 
world of dietetics, as well as several 
international leaders in the field, to 
Sydney for the congress.

“ICD 2012 was an innovative, 
progressive and dynamic event, set 
against one of the most beautiful 
backdrops in the world,” she said.

Ms Hewat said topics covered by the 
congress spanned nutrition challenges 
for developing countries; international 
food policy; food security; childhood 
obesity; nutrition for an ageing 
population; and innovative findings in 
nutrition research, including eating 
for sun protection, omega-3 fats in 
pregnancy and the benefits of cereal 
fibre.

The congress was sponsored by 
Yakult, The Australian Mushroom 
Growers Association, The Egg Nutrition 
Council, Unilever, Kellogg’s, Nuts for 
Life, The International Nut and Dried 
Fruit Congress, Anjinomoto, Meat and 
Livestock Australia, Australian Eggs 
Corporation Limited, Dairy Australia, 
Horticulture Australia Ltd, Chobani, 
Life’s ARA and Vital Foods.

Many companies and national bodies 
including Swisse, Sanitarium Health 
& Wellbeing, the Almond Board of 
Australia and The Grains and Legumes 
Nutrition Council exhibited at the 
congress and provided delegates 
with information, samples and taste 
tests. Feedback from exhibitors was 
overwhelmingly positive, with many 
stating the event enabled them to 
build strong support for their national 
meeting, as well as increase product 
awareness.  

ICD 2012 delegates agreed that the 
congress’ large attendance and diverse 
program had enabled them to make 
valuable international professional 
connections. Many research 
collaborations are also reported to have 
resulted, leaving a long-lasting legacy 
beyond the closing ceremony of the 
congress!

This feedback reflects the findings of 
the study BESydney commissioned into 
events held in Australia’s global city. 
The bureau’s Beyond Tourism Benefits 
study shone a spotlight on the diverse 
and valuable benefits that business 
events could offer delegates, sponsors 
and exhibitors, local associations and 
industries, and cities.
 
The study revealed 95 per cent of 
delegates agreed that conferences 
fostered networking by physically 
bringing people together to share 
new knowledge and ideas, and 76 
per cent agreed that conferences led 
to networking that resulted in the 
generation of ideas that drive future 
research agendas.

"ICD 2012 was an innovative, progressive and 
dynamic event, set against one of the most 
beautiful backdrops in the world.” 
 
Claire Hewat 
CEO, Dietitians Association of Australia
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OUR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BESydney prides itself on 
sound and astute financial 
management, which underpins 
the successful delivery of our 
strategy. 
 
Accountability and 
transparency are cornerstone 
to our relationships with our 
diverse stakeholder base. 
 
In this chapter we report 
on our 2012/13 financial 
performance.
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Dividends
No amounts were paid by way of dividend, bonus or otherwise 
to members during the year. The company’s constitution 
expressly prohibits such distributions.

Review of operations – Directors’ disclosure
The results of the company for the current year were as 
follows:

Gross income 9,742,519
Total expenditure 9,685,656

Net surplus before income tax $56,863

Detailed reviews of the operations of the company for the 
year are included in the Chairman’s Review and the Chief 
Executive Officer’s Report.

Significant changes in the state of affairs
There have been no significant changes in the nature of 
the company’s activities during the year and there were no 
significant changes in the state of affairs of the company 
during the year.

Events subsequent to the end of the financial year
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end 
of the financial year that significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the company, the results 
of those operations or the state of affairs of the company in 
subsequent financial years.

Future developments
There are no likely developments in the operations of the 
company that will affect the results in subsequent years.

Environmental regulations
Business Events Sydney operations are not subject to 
any significant environmental regulations under either 
Commonwealth or State legislation.

Proceedings on behalf of the company
No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings 
on behalf of the company or intervene in any proceedings 
to which the company is a party for the purpose of taking 
responsibility on behalf of the company for all or any part of 
those proceedings.

The company was not a party to any such proceedings during 
the year.

Information on Directors

Mr Colin Hughes 
Independent Chair, MAICD

Col Hughes was appointed Chair of the BESydney board 
in 2007. With a background in the aviation industry, Col is 
Past Chairman of the National Tourism Alliance, Director 
of the Travel Compensation Fund, Director of Best Western 
Hotels Australia, and Governor of the American Chamber 
of Commerce in Australia (AMCHAM). In addition to these 
roles, Col is a member of the Australian Institute of Company 
Directors, and an advisory board member of Tourism 
Northern Territory.

The Honourable Robert Hill AC
Independent Director

Robert Hill is well known for his past positions as Australian 
Ambassador and Permanent Representative to the United 
Nations in New York (2006–2009), and Australia’s Minister 
for Defence (2002–2006) and Minister for the Environment 
(1996–2002). Robert is currently Chancellor of University of 
Adelaide, Adjunct Professor in Sustainability, United States 
Studies Centre, University of Sydney, and Chair CRC for 
Low Carbon Living. He is also a member of the Asia Pacific 
Board of The Nature Conservancy (Hong Kong), a member 
of the advisory board for the Global Change Institute at 
the University of Queensland, and a member of the Global 
Oceans Commission. 

Professor Mary O’Kane
Independent Director 

Professor Mary O’Kane is the New South Wales Chief 
Scientist and Engineer and Executive Chairman of Mary 
O’Kane and Associates Pty Ltd – a Sydney-based company 
that advises governments, universities and the private sector 
on innovation, research, education and development. She is 
also Chair of the Cooperative Research Centre for Spatial 
Information Board and Chair of the Development Gateway 
and Development Gateway International. Additionally, Mary 
is a Director of KUTh Energy Limited, NICTA Limited, Capital 
Markets CRC Ltd and PSMA Ltd.

The Directors present their report made in accordance with 
a resolution of the Directors with respect to the financial 
statements of the company for the year ended 30 June 2013.

Directors’ report
The Directors of the company in office at any time during or 
since the end of the financial year are:

Mr Colin Hughes (Chairman)
Mr Scott Boyes – appointed 30/10/2012
Ms Sandra Chipchase 
Mr Gary Daly 
The Hon. Patricia Forsythe  
Ms Kathryn Halpin (nee Kate Smith) 
The Hon. Robert Hill AC
Professor Mary O’Kane 
Ms Gabrielle Trainor

Meeting of Directors

Number of  
meetings attended

Number  
of meetings 

eligible to attend

Mr C. Hughes 6 6

Mr S. Boyes 3 4

Ms S. Chipchase 5 6

Mr G. Daly 4 6

The Hon. P Forsythe 6 6

Ms K. Halpin (nee Smith) 6 6

The Hon. R Hill 4 6

Professor M. O’Kane 6 6

Ms G. Trainor 5 6

Principal activities
The principal activities of the company were those of the 
promotion and marketing of Sydney as a convention, meeting, 
incentive travel and exhibition destination.

Results
The net result after applicable income tax expense was a 
surplus of $56,863

Directors' report



5352

Ms Gabrielle Trainor LLB. FAICD
Independent Director and Chair of the Finance, Risk and Audit 
Committee (FRAC)
 
Gabrielle Trainor is a former journalist, lawyer and public 
sector executive who has twenty years’ experience as a chair 
and non-executive director for a range of public, private and 
not-for-profit entities. The positions she has held cut across 
government, businesses and organisations in the finance, 
urban development, hospitality, sports and arts sectors.

She was a founding partner of one of Australia’s most 
successful and well-regarded public relations and 
government affairs consultancies, John Connolly & Partners. 
During her 20 years at the firm, Gabrielle consulted on the 
management of difficult strategic issues to chairpersons and 
executive management of top 20 ASX-listed companies.

She is currently a member of the advisory board of Leighton 
Contractors and a director of the Barangaroo Delivery 
Authority, the GWS Giants Australian Football club, the 
Whitlam Institute and Cape York Group. She is a trustee of 
the University of Western Sydney and the Charlie Perkins 
Trust. She is Chair of the National Film and Sound Archive 
and child welfare agency Barnardo’s Australia.

Ms Sandra Chipchase 
Destination NSW Director

Sandra Chipchase is CEO of Destination NSW and is a 
member the City of Sydney’s Retail Advisory Board, Brand 
Australia Advisory Board, and NSW Australia Day Committee.

Sandra brings a wealth of experience in international and 
domestic tourism and business events marketing, business 
and commercial asset management and major events 
acquisition and management.

Her past roles have included senior positions with Tourism 
Australia in Frankfurt, Chicago and New York, and as General 
Manager Marketing at the Sydney Convention and Visitors 
Bureau (now Business Events Sydney). Sandra was co-
author of the National Business Events Strategy and NSW 
Visitor Economy Taskforce Report and prior to her current 
role, Sandra was CEO of Melbourne Convention and Visitors 
Bureau and in 2011 she won the Outstanding Contribution to 
Industry National Award from Meetings and Events Australia.

The Honourable Patricia Forsythe
Destination NSW Director

Patricia Forsythe is the Executive Director of the Sydney 
Business Chamber and a director of Destination NSW, the 
Hunter Development Corporation, The Sydney Children’s 
Hospital Network Board, and Cricket NSW. She is also a 
Member of Macquarie University Council, Honorary Associate 
Graduate School of Government University of Sydney, and 
a member of the UTS School of Business Advisory Board. 
Patricia was a Member of the New South Wales Legislative 
Council from 1991 to 2006, and on the Opposition’s 
frontbench from 1995 to 2005 in a variety of shadow 
portfolios.

Mr Scott Boyes 
Member Director 

Scott Boyes is Regional General Manager of Accor in NSW & 
ACT, relocating from Victoria in July 2012, after holding the 
position of Regional General Manager for Victoria, Tasmania 
and South Australia since 2008. An experienced hotelier, 
Scott has been working in the hospitality industry since 1992, 
commencing his career with Accor Asia Pacific in 1994 upon 
graduation from the Blue Mountains International Hotel 
Management School. In 1996, Scott was one of four people 
selected for Accor’s National Management Traineeship, a 
program designed to fast track individuals to the level of 
General Manager within the company. In 2005, he was one of 
three people from Australia and New Zealand to be awarded 
the prestigious Accor Bernache Award for his achievements 
in financial performance. The Bernache Award is the highest 
individual award within Accor, globally recognising individual 
performance throughout the group, which employs over 
140,000 people worldwide. 

Mr Gary Daly 
Member Director 

Gary Daly is Managing Director of Exhibitions and Trade 
Fairs – a major exhibition organiser that runs upwards of 
five major exhibitions and conferences in Sydney each year. 
These exhibitions include the industry event, Australian 
Business Events Expo.

Prior to this appointment, Gary was General Manager, Sales 
at Luna Park Sydney, a role he had held since 2004. During 
his tenure at Luna Park, Gary’s focus had been to develop 
the iconic location as one of Sydney’s pre-eminent business 
events destinations. Prior to joining Luna Park, Gary 
held senior management positions in a number of media 
organisations including the Nine Network, Sky Channel, the 
Seven Network and Prime Television.

Gary continues to be a major advocate for Sydney as one of 
the world’s leading business events destinations.

Ms Kathryn Halpin (nee Kate Smith)
Member Director 

As Managing Director of WaldronSmith Management, Kate 
Halpin brings to the role 29 years’ experience in the business 
events industry, primarily in the hotel and conference 
management sectors.

Recognised as one of the country’s leading conference 
organisers, WaldronSmith Management has been in 
operation for 19 years. With offices in Sydney and Melbourne, 
Kate offers association clients substantial knowledge 
and expertise in the strategic planning and delivery 
of international and national conferences throughout 
Australia. Kate works extensively with suppliers and major 
stakeholders in the industry to ensure effective relationships 
produce outstanding results. Kate is actively involved in the 
industry through various boards and memberships. 

In addition, the Board continues to benefit from the insights 
of two Advisors/Observers to the Board.

Mr Ton van Amerongen  
Special Advisor 

Ton van Amerongen is Chief Executive of the Sydney 
Convention and Exhibition Centre and the Sydney 
Entertainment Centre. Ton has extensive global experience 
in the hotel, tourism and business events industries. Past 
roles have spanned over finance and operations with five-star 
international hotel chains around the world, including his 
position as the first General Manager of the Park Lane Hotel 
when it opened in Sydney. Ton is a Founding Director of the 
Darling Harbour Business Association and the Chairman of 
the Business Events Council of Australia. 

Ms Carolyn Fletcher AM 
Board Observer

Carolyn is a member of the Sydney Harbour Foreshore 
Authority Board, a founder and Director of Black Isle 
Communications, a management communications 
consultancy, and founder and CEO of Opportunity Cambodia, 
a not-for-profit organisation that provides education and 
training for disadvantaged young people in rural Cambodia. 
Among other positions, she was a board member of the 
Darling Harbour Authority, Chairman of the Australian 
Theatre for Young People, and currently serves on ATYP’s 
Foundation Advisory Board.

Directors' report
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Directors’ benefits under contracts
The company has not, during or since the financial year, in 
respect of any person who is or has been an officer or auditor 
of the company or a related body corporate:

• indemnified or made any agreement for indemnifying 
against a liability, including costs and expenses in 
successfully defending legal proceedings; or

• paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect of a contract 
insuring against a liability for the costs or expenses to 
defend legal proceedings.

With the exception of the following matters:

During or since the end of the financial year the company 
has paid premiums in respect of contracts insuring each of 
the following directors and officers of the company against 
liabilities.

Mr Colin Hughes (Chairman)
Mr Scott Boyes
Ms Sandra Chipchase
Mr Gary Daly
The Hon. Patricia Forsythe
Ms Kathryn Halpin (nee Smith)
The Hon. Robert Hill AC
Ms Lyn Lewis-Smith (Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Mary O’Kane 
Ms Gabrielle Trainor
Mrs Sonya Stewart (Company Secretary)

Auditor’s independence declaration
A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required 
under Section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out on 
the next page.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of 
Directors:

Colin Hughes - Director

Gabrielle Trainor - Director

Signed at Sydney,
On 20 August 2013.

I declare that to the best of my knowledge and belief, during 
the year ended 30 June 2013 there have been

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence 
requirements as set out in the Corporations Act 2001 in 
relation to the audit and

(ii) no contravention of any applicable code of professional 
conduct in relation to the audit.

Sydney, 20 August 2013

LITTLEWOODS
Chartered Accountants
A. Reisen C A
Registered Company Auditor

Auditor’s independence declaration under section 
307c of the Corporations Act 2001 to the Directors of 
Business Events Sydney Limited

Directors' report
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Note 2013 2012

Revenue from ordinary activities 8 9,742,519 7,594,070

Employee benefits expense 4,839,480 3,928,123

Occupancy expenses 407,118 413,258

Depreciation and amortisation expenses 147,397 91,124

Other expenses from ordinary activities 4,291,661 3,136,169

Operating surplus before income tax 56,863 25,396

Income tax attributable to operating surplus  1(a) - -

Operating surplus after income tax 56,863 25,396

Retained earnings 1 July 1,421,968 1,396,572

Retained earnings 30 June $1,478,831 $1,421,968

The accompanying notes form part of these accounts and should be read in conjunction herewith.

Note 2013 2012

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
Other current assets

2
3
4

6,910,984
601,015
120,022

4,254,729
906,784
101,458

Total current assets 7,632,021 5,262,971

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 5 245,007 93,496

Total non-current assets 245,007 93,496

TOTAL ASSETS $7,877,028 $5,356,467

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables
Short term provisions

6
7

5,977,119
421,078

3,556,922
377,577

Total current liabilities 6,398,197 3,934,499

TOTAL LIABILITIES $6,398,197 $3,934,499

NET ASSETS $1,478,831 $1,421,968

EQUITY
Retained earnings $1,478,831 $1,421,968

The accompanying notes form part of these accounts and should be read in conjunction herewith.

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2013
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Note 2013 2012

Balance 1 July 1,421,968 1,396,572

Operating surplus for the year 56,863 25,396

Balance 30 June $1,478,831 $1,421,968

The accompanying notes form part of these accounts and should be read in conjunction herewith.

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT 
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial report is a general 
purpose financial report that has been 
prepared in accordance with Accounting 
Standards, Urgent Issues Group 
Interpretations, other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board and the 
Corporations Act 2001.

Business Events Sydney Limited is 
a company limited by guarantee, 
incorporated and domiciled in Australia.

Australian Accounting Standards 
set out accounting policies that the 
AASB has concluded would result in a 
financial report containing relevant and 
reliable information about transactions, 
events and conditions to which they 
apply.  Compliance with Australian 
Accounting Standards ensures that the 
financial statements and notes also 
comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards.  Material 
accounting policies adopted in the 
preparation of this financial report 
are presented below.  They have been 
consistently applied unless otherwise 
stated.

a) Income tax
As the company is engaged in the 
promotion and development of tourism 
in Australia, it is considered that under 
present taxation laws the company is 
exempt from income tax. Therefore the 
company has not adopted tax effect 
accounting.

b) Property, plant and equipment
Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on 
the cost basis less depreciation and 
impairment losses.

The carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment is reviewed annually by the 
directors to ensure it is not in excess of 
the recoverable amount of those assets. 

The recoverable amount is assessed on 
the basis of the expected net cash flows 
which will be received from the assets 
employment and subsequent disposal. 
The expected net cash flows have not 
been discounted to present values in 
determining recoverable amounts.

Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed 
assets including buildings and 
capitalised assets, but excluding 
freehold land, are depreciated on a 
straight line or diminishing value basis 
(apart from those assets valued under 
$1,000 which are expensed) over their 
estimated useful lives to the entity 
commencing from the time the asset is 
held ready for use. Properties held for 
investment purposes are not subject 
to a depreciation charge. Leasehold 
improvements are depreciated over the 
shorter of either the unexpired period 
of the lease or the estimated useful life 
of the improvements.

The depreciation rates used for each 
class of assets are:

Class of fixed asset  
Depreciation  Rate

Plant and equipment 11.25 - 40%
Furniture and fittings 11.25 – 20%
Leasehold improvements 20%

c) Leases
(i) Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases 
are recognised in the income statement 
on a straight-line basis over the term 
of the lease.  Lease incentives received 
are recognised in the income statement 
as an integral part of the total lease 
expense and spread over the lease 
term.

(ii) Finance lease payments
Minimum lease payments are 
apportioned between the finance 
charge and the reduction of the 

outstanding liability.  The finance 
charge is allocated to each period 
during the lease term so as to produce 
a constant periodic rate of interest on 
the remaining balance of the liability.

d) Employee benefits
Provision is made for the company’s 
liability for employee benefits arising 
from services rendered by employees 
to balance date. Employee benefits 
that are expected to be settled within 
one year have been measured at the 
amounts expected to be paid when the 
liability is settled, plus related on-costs.  
Employee benefits payable later than 
one year have been measured at the 
present value of the estimated future 
cash outflows to be made for those 
benefits.

Contributions are made by the company 
to an employee superannuation fund 
and are charged as expenses when 
incurred.

e) Revenue
Interest revenue is recognised on a 
proportional basis taking into account 
the interest rates applicable to the 
financial assets.

Revenue from the rendering of a service 
is recognised upon the delivery of the 
service to the customer.

All revenue is stated net of the amount 
of goods and services tax (GST). 

f) Membership subscriptions
Membership subscriptions are 
brought to account on an accruals 
basis.  Invoices issued prior to the 
subscription period are credited to an 
unearned income holding account and 
accordingly credited to the income 
account when income has been 
derived. New members’ subscriptions 
are for 12 months from the date of 
processing and income is credited on a 
monthly basis to the income account.

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2013

Notes to and forming part of the financial  
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

3. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES - CURRENT

4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

2013 2012

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Short term deposits
Term deposit (a)

278
749,800

6,069,040
91,866

400
50,739

4,111,724
91,866

$6,910,984 $4,254,729

(a) Charge held over term deposit by landlord for Sydney office rental bond.

2013 2012

Prepayments
Deposits refundable
Other current assets

79,254
26,209
14,559

58,245
12,994
30,219

$120,022 $101,458

2013 2012

Debtors
Less: provision for doubtful debts
Other debtors

595,053
-

5,962

795,431
-

111,353

$601,015 $906,784

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Office
equipment

Furniture  
and fittings

Leasehold
improvements Total

Cost

Balance 1 July 2011
Additions
Disposals

408,978
83,968

-

140,890
775

-

295,483
-
-

845,351
84,743

-

Balance 30 June 2012 $492,946 $141,665 $295,483 $930,094

Balance 1 July 2012
Additions
Disposals

492,946
62,498

233,479

141,665
104,907
116,766

295,483
131,503
295,483

930,094
298,908
645,728

Balance 30 June 2013 $321,965 $129,806 $131,503 $583,274

Depreciation and impairment losses

Balance 1 July 2011
Depreciation for Year
Disposals

328,274
80,828

-

126,604
5,409

-

290,596
4,887

-

745,474
91,124

-

Balance 30 June 2012 $409,102 $132,013 $295,483 $836,598

Balance 1 July 2012
Depreciation for Year
Disposals

409,102
72,164

233,479

132,013
33,295

116,624

295,483
41,796

295,483

836,598
147,255
645,586

Balance 30 June 2013 $247,787 $48,684 $41,796 $338,267

Carrying amount

30 June 2011
30 June 2012

80,704
83,844

14,286
9,652

4,887
-

99,877
93,496

30 June 2013 $74,178 $81,122 $89,707 $245,007

6. PAYABLES - CURRENT

2013 2012

Trade creditors and accruals
Income in advance
Funding in advance

3,493,576
297,179

2,186,364

2,458,391
898,531
200,000

$5,977,119 $3,556,922

Notes to and forming part of the financial  
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013
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9. OPERATING SURPLUS

7. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

8. OPERATING REVENUE

2013 2012

Operating surplus  
before income tax has been determined after:

Crediting as income
Interest received or receivable
Other corporations 174,412 191,114

Charging as expense
Depreciation & amortisation
Auditors’ remuneration
Provisions
Employee entitlements

147,255
11,000

43,501

91,124
11,230

33,019

Rental expense on operating lease 422,300 397,060

2013 2012

Provision for annual leave
Provision for long service leave

272,812
148,266

243,971
133,606

$421,078 $377,577

2013 2012

State Government contribution
Membership subscriptions and sponsorship
Export market development grant
Co-operative advertising and exhibition revenue
Interest income
Sundry income

7,729,000
1,369,180

272,451
134,545
174,412

62,931

5,660,000
1,469,291

2,479
194,806
191,114

76,380

$9,742,519 $7,594,070

10. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

11. KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

2013 2012

Total amounts received or due and receivable by the auditors’ of the company for:

a) Audit of accounts
b) Other services

8,900
2,100

8,830
2,400

$11,000 $11,230

The auditors received no other benefits.

Any person(s) having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 
controlling the activities of the company, directly or indirectly, including its 
committee members, is considered key management personnel. 2013 2012

Key Management Personnel Compensation:
Short term benefits
Post employment benefit (superannuation)

1,167,286
90,843

978,908
78,407

$1,258,129 $1,057,316

12. LEASE COMMITMENTS

2013 2012

Finance leases Nil Nil

Operating leases
Amounts payable on operating lease for premises and office equipment

Due within 1 year
Due within 1 - 2 years
Due within 2 - 5 years

470,997
294,396

12,801

397,080
397,080
279,837

$     778,194 $   1,073,998

Notes to and forming part of the financial  
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013
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Gary Daly
Kate Smith

Patricia Forsythe
Scott Boyes

Sandra Chipchase

Transactions with Directors

During the year, the following directors or their director-related entities provided goods and services to the company that were 
on normal terms and conditions.

The company operates predominantly in the tourism industry.  The principal activity of the company is the promotion of Sydney 
both nationally and internationally in that industry.

The company operates predominantly in one geographical area, being Sydney, New South Wales, Australia.

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

14. FINANCIAL REPORTING BY SEGMENTS

a) Interest rate risk

The company’s exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument’s value will fluctuate as a result 
of changes in market interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rates on those financial assets and financial 
liabilities is as follows:

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Weighted 
average
effective 

interest rate
Floating

interest rate
Fixed interest rate maturing

Within 1 year          1 to 5 years Non-interest bearing

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Financial assets

Cash on hand - - - -  -  -  -  - 278 400

Cash at bank 0.35% 0.35% 749,800 50,739 - - - - -          -  

Receivables - - - -  -  -  -  - 601,015 906,784

Short term 
deposits 4.13% 4.00% 6,069,040 4,111,724  -  - 91,866 91,866 - -

Total financial 
assets - - 6,818,840 4,162,463

            
- 

            
- 91,866 91,866 601,293 907,184

Financial liabilities

Bank overdraft -  - -  -  -  -  -  - - - 

Trade creditors 
and accruals -  - -  -  -  -  -  - 3,493,576 2,658,391

Lease 
liabilities - - -  - - - - - - -

Total financial 
liabilities -  - -              - - - - - 3,493,576 2,658,391

Notes to and forming part of the financial  
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013
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b) Credit risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk, excluding the value of any collateral or other security, at balance date to recognised 
financial assets is the carrying amount of those assets, net of any provisions for doubtful debts, as disclosed in the statement 
of financial position and notes to the financial statements.

The company does not have any material credit risk exposure to any single debtor or group of debtors under financial 
instruments entered into by the company.

c) Net fair values

For all other financial assets and liabilities the fair net value approximates their carrying value. The aggregate net fair values 
and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the balance sheet and in the notes to and 
forming part of the accounts.

Nil.

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

16. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Note 2013 2012

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from members, functions and sales
Payments to suppliers, contractors and employees
Interest received
Funding Received

9,167,133
(8,559,531)

174,412
2,186,364

7,053,341
(7,183,428)

191,114
200,000

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 2 $2,968,378 $261,027

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for property, plant and equipment
(Payment)/refund of deposits
(Payment)/refund for term deposit

(298,908)
(13,215)

-

(84,743)
(10,644)
(91,866)

Net cash used in investing activities $(312,123) $(187,253)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of borrowings - -

Net cash (used in) financing activities $- $-

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held
Cash at 1 July

2,656,255
4,162,863

73,774
4,089,089

Cash at 30 June 1 $6,819,118 $4,162,863

CASH FLOW

Notes to and forming part of the financial  
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013
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1. RECONCILIATION OF CASH

For the purposes of this statement of Cash Flows, cash includes:
(i) Cash on hand and in at call deposits with banks or financial institutions, bank overdrafts; and
(ii) Investments in money market instruments that are readily convertible into cash.

2. RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING SURPLUS AFTER TAX WITH CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS

2013 2012

Cash at the end of year is shown in the balance sheet as:

Cash on hand
Short term deposits
Cash at bank

278
6,069,040

749,800

400
4,111,724

50,739

$6,819,118 $4,162,863

2013 2012

Operating surplus after income tax 56,863 25,396

Non-cash flows in operating surplus

Depreciation and amortisation
Increase in provisions

147,397
43,501

91,124
33,019

Changes in assets and liabilities

Decrease/(increase) in debtors
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in creditors and accruals
Increase/(decrease) in income in advance
Increase/(Decrease) in funding in advance

200,378
(21,009)
121,051
835,185

(401,352)
1,986,364

43,850
(30,406)
(82,825)
374,334

(393,465)
200,000

Cash Flow provided by/(used in) operations $2,968,378 $261,027

The Directors of Business Events Sydney Limited declare 
that:

1. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 
56 – 68 are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001.

(a) comply with Accounting Standards and the 
Corporations Regulations 2001; and

 
(b) give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 

30th June 2013 and of the performance for the year 
ended on that date of the company;

2. in the Directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to 
believe that the company will be able to pay its debts as 
and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of 
the Board of Directors.

Colin Hughes – Director                 Gabrielle Trainor - Director

Sydney, 20 August 2013

Notes to and forming part of the financial  
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 Directors’ declaration
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Report on the financial report
We have audited the accompanying financial report of 
Business Events Sydney Limited, which comprises the 
statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the 
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes 
in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information, and the director’s 
declaration.

Director’s responsibility for the financial report
The directors of the company are responsible for the 
preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal control 
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the 
preparation of the financial report that is free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1, the 
directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard 
AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the 
financial statements comply with International Financial 
Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial 
report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. Those 
standards require that we comply with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial report is free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
of the financial report that gives a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.  

Independence
In conducting our audit, we followed applicable independence 
requirements of Australian Professional and Ethical 
Pronouncements and the Corporations Act 2001.

Audit opinion
In our opinion:

(a) the financial report of Business Events Sydney Limited is 
in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving true and fair view of the company’s financial 
position as at 30 June, 2013 and of its performance for 
the year ended on that date; and

(ii) complying with Accounting Standards in Australia and 
the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

(b) the financial report also complies with International 
Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1.

Sydney, 20 August 2013

LITTLEWOODS
Chartered Accountants
A. Reisen C A
Registered Company Auditor

Additional information
The Annual Report can be found online at www.businesseventssydney.com.au

View further information about Sydney as a business events destination and our 
products and services at www.businesseventssydney.com.au

© Business Events Sydney 2013

About this report
All figures quoted are in Australian dollars unless otherwise stated. A reference to 
“$” is to an amount in Australian dollars. References to BESydney are to Business 
Events Sydney (ABN 42 002 630 364). The “company” refers to Business Events 
Sydney. All references are correct as at 30 September 2013 except where stated 
otherwise. Any reference to changes (including an increase or decrease) relate to 
the previous year, unless otherwise stated. Economic impact is calculated based 
on the best available estimate of delegate attendance and daily spend.
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Australia office
Level 13, 80 William Street
Sydney NSW 2011 Australia
Phone: +61 2 9331 4045
Fax: +61 2 9360 1223
Email: info@besydney.com.au

Europe office
Australia Centre, Australia House
6th Floor Melbourne Place, The Strand
London WC2B 4LG United Kingdom
Tel: +44 207 438 4616
Email: ukoffice@besydney.com.au

Americas office
128 Wicksteed Ave
Montreal, Quebec
H3P 1R2
Ph: +1 514 449 0013
Email: americanoffice@besydney.com.au

Singapore office
30 Raffles Place
23/F Chevron House
Singapore 048622 
Phone: +65 6233 5623
Email: singaporeoffice@besydney.com.au

China office
Room 1139, Level 11, IMAGO Tower       
No.99 Wu Ning Road
Putuo District
Shanghai 200063
PR China
Phone: +86 21 6056 7270
Email: chinaoffice@besydney.com.au

India office
No. 83, 3 North Avenue (Building 3)
Maker Maxity, Bandra Kurla Complex
Bandra (E), Mumbai – 400051
Phone: +91 22 6749 3034
Mobile: +91 9873 70 76 79
Email: pbawa@besydney.com.au


